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It is our firm commitment to
operate the Modaraba activities in
accordance with Islamic
Shariah with its true spirit

To employ the Modaraba funds in
best possible way and to promote
the human talents, to maximize
the profit for certificate holders.

It is our mission lo constantly
endeavour for excellence in all
spheres of business aclivity,
maintain its eminent market
position, promote lasting
relationship with our customers
and other stakeholders, and
construct a durable and vibrant
Pakistan.

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES

We believe a complete code of ethics is a prerequiste
for all Directors and employees of First Paramount
Modaraba. We endeavour to thephilosophy behind the
code of ethics to carry out honestly activities assigned
to them. Qur aim is to have highest standard of
excellence for the product and the betterment for all
those involved directly or indirectly with our Modaraba.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
MANAGED BY: PARAMOUNT INVESTMENTS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Tanvesr Ahmed Magoon Chaiman

Mr. Syed Waijih Hasan Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nadeem fgbal Director

Mr. Pir Muhammad Kalia Director ®

Mr. Abrar Ahmed Director

Mr. Habib Ahmed Navaid Independent Director
Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi Independent Director
** Resigned w e - 30 Jul 2024

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Habib Ahmed Navaid Chalman

Mr Pir Muhammad Kalia Member™®

Mr. Nadeem Igbal Member

* Resigned we.f 30l 2024

HUMAN RESOURCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi Chaiman

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon Member

Mr. Nadeem Igbal Member

Mr. Syed Waijih Hasan Member

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER / COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Muhammad tham Khan {Sesigned wer 2040 2024)
Mr. Syed Mudassir Ali (Aspainted we.f 23 Jul 2024)

SHARIAH ADVISOR
Mufti Muhammad Farhan Faroog

SHARIAH CONSULTANT _
Mufti Muhammad Najeeb Khan

CREDIT RATING
Long term BBB-  Short Term A-3

Cutlook Stable
By VIS Credit Rating Company

AUDITORS OF THE MODARABA
M/s Riaz Ahmad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

AUDITORS OF THE MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY
M/s. Hafizullah & Ca
Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR
M/s Raja Qasit Nawaz, Advocates
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BANKERS

Meezan Bank Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited -Islamic Banking
Habib Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suit# 107, 108, 1st Floor, P.E.C.H.S. Community Office Complex,
Block-2 PECHS, Shahrah-e-Quaiden, Karachi.

Phone: 34381037-38-52 & 34381101. Fax: 34534410

E-mail: info@fpm.com.pk

Web: www.fpm.com.pk

SHARE REGISTRAR

THK ASSOCIATES (PVT) LTD.
32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2,
D.H.A Phase VII, Karachi 75500
Pakistan _
UAN : +92 (021) 111-000-322
Tel :+92(021)35310191-6

Web: www.thk.com.pk
Email: sfc@thk.com.pk
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE-HOLDERS OF FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA

The Directors of Paramount Investment Limited, Management Company of First Paramount Modaraba, are
pleased to present the duly audited financial statements for the financial year ended on 30 June 2024, along
with Shariah Advisor's report and Report of External Auditors to the Certificate Holders.

Modaraba has posted a pre-tax profit of Rs. 40,659,604 for the year ended 30 June 2024, as compared to Rs.
11,788,671 for the same period last year (an increase of 245%). The net after-tax profits of Modaraba for the
year stood at Rs. 28,542,477, increased by Rs. 22,002,352 (336%) from last year's profits, Earning per certificate
for the year stood at Rs. 2.07 while it was at Rs. 0.47 in the last year.

During the period, FPM Petro Services, an in-house venture of Modaraba, continued its growth. Realignment
of the product portfolio, continuous introduction of new high margin products and relentless efforts for
securing high sales volume is translated into healthy results. Modaraba's long term strategy for capturing the
market share and creating a strong market foolprint with the objective of profit maximization for certificate
halders is yielding exceptional results. With the continugus expansion of hydrocarbon exploration initiatives in
the country, we expect this growth to continue jn future.

Economic condition of the Country, though better from past year, is still far from stability and growth, Since it
is linked with the political situation of the Country, one cannot forecast positivity in shorter term scenario. On
top of that, Middle Eastern crisis that began as lsrael-Palestine Conflict has now turned into a much bigger
regional crisis involving our neighbors |ran also.

Modaraba's in-house venture for AML / CFT related screening services, is doing Alhamdulillah well, Plans to
launch this service in Middle East, Africa and Central Asian markets is underway. Related corporate structures
are well in place and operations will begin in the last quarter of this calendar year. This move Inshallah will
bring pocd news in many fronts for Modaraba.

With primary focus on the objective of expansion, diversification in business by innovation and use of
technology, the Modaraba through contractual arrangements with their partners, participated in the sandbox
testing of “Asset Fractionation Platform” announced by SECP during the year, This venture will Inshallah
turnaround the landscape of operations and size of the Modaraba. The financial outcomes will unfold in the
next few months.

As per revised Modaraba Regulations issued on 15 August 2022 by SECP, all deposit taking Modarabas were
required to have a minimurm equity of Rs. 500 million (FPM's is at 250 million) and a minimum credit rating of
“A-" (FPM's rating is BBB) in a period of 3 years. Regulations also restricted issuance of dividend to Modaraba's
certificate holders until compliance of these conditions are made.

The Board of Directors and the Mapagement of Modaraba are fully committed to comply with the
requirements of these Regulations and meeting the criteria mentioned therein.

s |
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Financial Results:
Financial results are summarized as under:

Year ended 30 Year ended 30*"
lune, 2024 June, 2023
(Amount in (Amount in
Rupees) Rupees)
| Profit before other income and financial charges i 59,461,248 26,555,816
I I =
[ Frnﬂt befﬂre tax and levy f 40, 655,604 11 ?EEI 5?1
! Profit after tax | 28,542,477 6,540,124
i EPC 2.070 0.474

Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance:
As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased to report that:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Modaraba present fairly its true state of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity,
b} Proper books of account of the Modaraba have been maintained.
c} Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
d] International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of
financial statements.
g) The system of internal control is sound and has been effectively implemented and manitored.
f) The Modaraba is financially sound and there is no reason whatsoever to doubt its ability to continue
as a going concern.
g} There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in
the listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange and;
h) The Board of Directors has total 7 directors including CEQ. The composition of the board is as follows:
«  Male: "
» Female: 1]

1e of Director

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon, Chairman

Syed Wajih Hassan, Chief Executive

Mr. Pir Muhammad Kalia, Director®

Mr. Abrar Ahmed, Director

Mr. Nadeem labal, Director

Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi, Independent Director

Mr. Habib Ahmed Navaid, Independent Director
* Resigned woe f 30 0l 2024
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i) During the year under review, four {04) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by
each director was as follows:

Mame of Director

Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon, Chairman 4 4
Syed Wajih Hassan, Chief Executive 4 4
M. Pir Muhammad Kalia, Director 4 3
Mr. Abrar Ahmed, Director 4 4
Mr. Nadeem lgbal, Director 4 4
Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi, Independent Director 4 4
Mir. Habib Ahmed Mavaid, Independent Director 4 4

il During the year, four [04) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each member
was as follows:

Name of Director Meetings Eligibility Meeting Attended
Mr. Habib Ahmed Navaid, Chairperson 4 4
Mr. Pir Muhammad Kalia, Member 4 3
Syed Wajih Hassan, Member 4 4
Mr. Nadeem Igbal, Member 4 4

k) During the year, one (01) HR meeting was held. Attendance by each member was as follows:

MName of Director

Mir. Humayun Qureshi, Chairperson 1 1
Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon, Member 1 1
Syed Wajih Hassan, Member 1 i}
Mr. Nadeem Igbal, Member 1 1

I os ———
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Director Remuneration
The remuneration of the director for attending meetings of the board or any Committee of the Board is

determined under the Director’s Compensation Policy adopted by First Paramount Modaraba.

Shariah Advisor's Report _
The Modaraba continues to seek guidance from its Shariah Advisor, Mufti Farhan Faroaq as and when required
to ensure full compliance to Shariah Audit mechanism developed in consultation with Registrar Modaraba.

External Auditors

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has approved the appaointment of the auditors
M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co, Chartered Accountants as auditors for the year ending lune 30, 2025,
subject to approval of the Reglistrar Modaraba,

Acknowledgement

The Management and the Board of Directors hereby offer thanks of manifold of the continuance patronage
and coordination especially of the Registrar Modarabas, Securities And Exchange Commission of Pakistan,
Islamabad, and State Bank of Pakistan.

We also put to our staff members in the scale of appreciation who really showed their agility in the completion

of the given task.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Paramount Investments Limited (PIL)
Managers of First Paramount Modaraba
Mr. Syed Wajih Hassan Mr. Tanveer Ahmed Magoon
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Karachi

Dated: 03 October 2024
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

First Faramount Madarsba ("the Modaraba") managed by Paramount Investrments Limited {the Management Campany)
For the Year Ended 30 Junes 2024

The Management Company has camplied with the requirements of the Regulations In the following manner:
1. The tota! number of Directars are seven (07)* as per the following:

a, Mals! 7
b, Female: -

* Casual Vacancy accurred in the office of Director on 30 Jul 2024 and the Board has appointed a female director an 31 Jul 2024
and is awaiting approval of Registrar Modaraba, SECP.

2. The compositon of the Board s as follows:

Category Names

| Mr. Humayun Mazhar Qureshi

Independent Directors | pr* o At o g

Mr, Tanveer Ahmed Magoan

Mr. Nadeem Igbal

Mr. Fir Muhammad Kaliva *

Mr. Abrar Ahrmed

Executive Director Mr. Syed Wajih Hassan (Chief Executive Officer}

* Mr, Pir Muhammad Kaliva resigned from the office of Director on 30 Jul 2024 and the Board has sppointed a female director on
31 Jul 2024, Approval of her appointment is awaited from Registrar Modaraba, SECP.

Mon-Executive Directors

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them Is serving as a Director on more than seven listed companies, including the
Management Company;

4.  The Management Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Managemment Company alang with its supporting polices and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision [ mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Management
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant polides along with thelr date of approval or
updating is maintained by the Managemeant Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions an relevant matters have been taken by the Board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided aver by the Chalrman and, in his absence, by a Director elected by the Board for this
purpass, The Beand has complied with the requiraments of the Act and the Regulations with raspect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

& The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Dlrectors in accordance with the Ad and
these Regulations;

9. Outof seven, four Directors mect the mﬂm criterla of minimum of 14 yvears of education and 15 years of experience on the
Boards of lisked companies, hence are exempl from Directors’ training program, However, remaining direckods will attain the
certification in due course; '

10.  The Board has approved appoinbment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, including their remuneration and terms
and conditicns of employment and comphlied with relevant requiremants of the Regulations;

11, Chief Fnancal Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endarsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;

. 13
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12, The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committes

Names Designation held
Mr. Habb Ahmed Navald Chalrperson

Mr. Madeem Igbal Mamber

Mr. Pir Muhamimad Kaliya Membar

b} HR and Remuneration Committes

Mames Designation held
Mr. Hurayun Mazhar Qureshi Chalrperson

Mr, Tanwveer shmed Magoon Meamber

Mr. Medeam Ighal Member

Mr. Syed Wajih Hasan Member

€} Risk Management & Credit Committee

Mames Designation held
Mr. Tanvesr Ahmed Magoon Chairperson

Mr, Habib Ahmed Navaid Mermber

Mr. Nadeam Igbal Mermber

FIRST PARANOUNT
MODARABA

AFLFILET = SRIRANAT - GREWST

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, docurented and advised to the committee for
compliance;

14, The frequency of mestings (quarterly / half vearly / yvearly) of the committees were as per following:
a) Audit Committee
Four quarterly meetings were held during the financial year ended 30 June 2024,
b} HR and Remuneration Commitles
Cme meeting of HR and Remunerabion Committes was held during the financial year ended 30 June 2024,

15, The Board has set up an effective Intemal audit function (outsourced to & firm of chartered actountamts) who are considered
sultably gualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policles and precedures of the Management
Comparny.

16, The smbutory auditors of the Management Company have confirmed that they have been gihven a satisfactary rating under the
Quality Control Review program of the Institets of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they ard all their pariners are in compliance with International Federation of Sccountanis (TFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involvad
in the audit are not a ciose relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Directar of the Management Company;

17. The statutory auditoes or the persons associated with them hawe not been appointed to provide other serices except in
accordance with the Act, these Reguilations or any other regulatory requirernent and the auditors have confirmed that they have.
chzerved IFAC guidalines in this regard;

18, Ve conflem that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 35 have been complied with except of the following:

&) Regulations 7 requires that the Board shall have at least one female director when it is reconstituted after the expiry of its
current term. In order to comply with this regulation, the Board has already appointed a female director on 31 Jul 2024 and |s
aviaiting approval of Registrar Modaraba, SECP, )

b} The two elected indepandent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and exparience to discharge and exacute
thelr duties competently, as per applicable laws and regulations. As they fulfill the necessary requirements as per applicabie
lawes and regulations, hence, appointment of a third independent director & not warranbed.

I 14



gs}r-ﬁ-if Paramiovwnt WMadaraba

(Andslamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA

AFLFILET = SRIRANAT - GREWST

19. Expianations for non-compliance with reguirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are;

Sr | Requirement
Mo,

Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation
MNo.

1| Minutes of meeting:

The Charman shall ensure that minutes of the
meetings of the Board are kept in accordance with the
requirements of section 179 af the Act,

During the year, the resoiution through circulation was
passed but does not noted at subsequent meeting of
the baard or the committes thersof, as the case may,
and made part of minutes of such mesting.

Resolutions through circulation are discussed in
subsequent Board Mestings and made part of It 12
However, it will be ensured that all approved
resolutions through circuiation are mate part of the
minutes of subsequent Board Meetings,

Z | Related party transactions:

The details of all related party transactions shall be
placed periodically before the audtt committes of the

Al rdated party transactions are placed periodically
before the Audit Committes and before the Board
for review and approval.

hold office of Chief Finandal Officer and the
Company Secretary of 2 listad company.

company and upon recommendations of the audit 15
committee, the same shall be placed before the Board
for review and approval
3 | Qualification of company secretary:
Currenthy, the Chief Financial Officer Is acting as a
The =ame person shall  nof simulsneously | Secretary of Managerment Comparty Hil the position 24

of Company Secretary is fulflled, The Board will

consider apoointing Company  Secretary  for
compliznce with the requirement of the Regulation.

4 | Composition of internal audit function:

The head of internal audit shall functionally report to
the audit committee and administratively to the chisf
axecutive officer and his performance appraisal shall
be done jointly by the Chairman of the audit committes
and the chief executive officer,

The Board has ssf up an effective internal awdic
function (ous to a fim of
accountants) who are considessd suitably qualified
and experienced for the pumpose and are 312}
conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Managemeant Company,

The internal audit funchion reports directly to the
Audic Committee. The Audit Committes, In
consultation with the Chief Esecutive Officer,
reviews the performance and other matters of the
internal audit funcbon.

T Nomination Committes:

The Board may constiute a separste committee,
designated as the nemination committes, of such
number and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances.

Currently, the functions of nomination committes
are being performed by the Human Resource and 29
Remureration Committze, The Board will consider
constituting a separate nominaton committes.

6 | Disclosure of significant policies on website:

The company may post key elements of its significant
paficies, brief synopsis of terms of reference of the
board's committees on s website and key elemeants of
the director’s remuneration palicy,

The Management of the Company will consider
piacing key elements of its significant policies, brief
syropsis of terms of reference of the board's
committess on its website.

7 | Anti-harassment policy:

The Board may inchide anti-harssment policy for
pratection against hamssment at the workplace,

Currently, a comprehensive code of conduct for its | L0{4)(avi)
employees is adopted by the Board. However, the
Board will consider adoption of a separate
documentad anti-harassment policy to safeguard
the rights and well-being of its employees and for
pratéction against harassment at workplace,

TANVEER AMMED MAGOON
Chairman
Karachi: 03 October 20249
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of First Paramount Modaraba

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewsd the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Goversance) Regulations, 2015 {the Regulations] prepared by the Board of
Ditectors of Paramount Investments Limited {“the Management Company™) for the year ended
30 June 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Reguiations,

Tha responsibiity tor compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Qur responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance
reflacts the status of the Management Company's compliance with the provisions of the
Begulations and report if it does not and 1o highlight any non-compiiance with the
requirzments of the Regulaticns. A review is limited prienarily to inguiries of the Managemeant
Company's personiel and review of various documents prepared by the Management
Company to comoly with the Regulabons,

As a part of our audit of the financizl slaterments we are reguired o obtain an understanding
of the azeounting anmd internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
affective aucil approach. We are not reguired to consider wnether the Baard of Directors’
statement an internal contrel covers all risks and centrols or to form an opinion on Fhe
affectveness of such intermnal controls, the Managemsant Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.,

The Regulations require the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and
upon recornmendation of the Audit Commitlee, place hefore the Board of Directors for their
reviave and apgoroval, its related party transactions. We are only reguired and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Buard of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Cammittes.

Based on our review, nothing has come ta our attention which causes us to believe that the
Stalenrent of Compliance does not appropnately refiect the Management Company's
comoliance, in 2l material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
applicable to the Management Company for the year ended 30 June 2024,

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the

Regulations as refiected or not in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the
Statemert of Compliance;

J.-mem'l-be: of
® Nexia
Irterralisral
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i No. | reference |
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| 6r. | Paragraph | S

I 17

(0 18 (a)  As per regulaticns 7 of the Regulations, the Board shall have at least
- ane female director when it is reconstituted after the expiry of its
currant term. However, no female director was elected at the time cf

ejection of directors held during the year.

{it) 18(b; The number of independent directors appointed is less than the
number prescribed by the Regulations 7 ie., at least two or 1/3
members of the Board, whichever is higher and is not rounded up as
one.

1%

2IAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

KARACHI

DATE: 04 OCTOBER 2024
UDIN: CR202410045bwanfyUdW
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Shariah Advisor’s Report

| have conducted the Shariah review of First Paramount Modaraba managed by Paramount
Investments Limited Modaraba Company for the financial year ended June 30" 2024, in accordance
with the requirements as reported hereunder, In my oplnlon:

1.

The Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has strengthened the Shariah compliancs

in letter and spirit and the systems, procedures and policies adopted by the Modaraba are in

line with the Shariah principles. Following were the major developments that took place

during the year; '

» a) FPM achieved a significant milestone by receiving the Certificate of
Incorporztion from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP] and establishing a new subsidiary, Paramount Compliance [Private)
Limited (PCPL). This subsidiary aims 1o provide Anti-Money
Laundering/Combating the Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT) Screening
Facility services. Notably, the subsidiary is yet to commence commercial
business operations.

During the year, the Modaraba entered into various financing agreements with clients,
utilizing Shariah-compliant products. All agreements were executed on formats approved by
the Religious Board, ensuring strict adherence to lslamic principles. Furthermore, all related
conditions and requirements have been fully met.

. To the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the business

transactions undertaken by the Modaraba incuding the incorporation of Paramount
Compliance (Private] Limited (PCPL) and its proposed AML/CFT Screening business and all
other matters incidental thereto are in conformity with the Shariah requirements as well as
the requirements of the Prospectus, Islamic Financial Accounting Standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the Shariah Compliance and Shariah Audit Regulations for Modaraba's,

Profit sharing ratios, profits and charging of losses (if any) relating to ary deposit raising
prnm:tmpfmtﬂmebasis and principles of Shariah.

Dated: Cctober 02, 2024

. -

Mufti Muhammad Farhan Faroog Mufti Muhamrmad Najeeb Khan
Shariah Advisor Shariah Consultant
of First Paramount Mocaraba of First Paramount Maodaraba
Managed By Paramount Investments Limited Managed By Paramount Investments Limited

AL
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MODARABA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the certificate holders of First Paramount Modaraba
Report on the Audit of the Unconsofidated Financial Statements
Cpinion

W have auditad the annexed unconsolidated financlal statements of First Paramount Modaraba {the Modaraba),
wihich comprise the unconsoliidated statement of finandizl position as at 30 June 2024, and the unconsclidated
staterrent of profit and loss, the urconsclidated statement of comprehensive Income, the wnconsclidated
statement of changes in equity, the unconsclidated cash flow statemant for the year then ended, and notes to the
unconsolidated financlal statements, including material accounting poticy information and other explanztory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledoe and belief, wers necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our gpinion and o the best of our infurmation and according te the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated  statement of financial position, the unconsolidaied statement of profit and loss |, the
unconsclidated statement of comprehensive income, the wunconsolidated statement of change in equity and the
wurnconsolidated cash flow statement together with the netes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pekistan and give the information required by the Modaraba Companies
and Modaraba (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XxX1 of 1980), in the maoner so required znd
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Modaraba's affairs as at 30 June 2024 and of e profi,
cemprehensive income, the chances in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatiznal Stancards on Auditing (154s) as applicabie in Pakistan,
Our responsibilities under thase standards are further descrined in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the vnconsalidated firandal statements section of our report. We are independent of the Modaraba and
Pemmount Investments Limitad {the Modaraba Company} in accosdence with the International Ethics Stancards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accourtants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan {the Code) and we have fulfilled cur other ethical resporsibiities in 2ccordance with the
Code. We befeve thal the audit evidence we have chtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our

Opinion.
Emphasls of matter

We draw altention to note 23.1 to the financial statements, which states that the Modaraba 15 non-compilant wiin
the credit rating and minimum squity requirements as stipuated in Modaraba Regulations, 2021, As maore Fulty
disclosed in the afore-said note, the management understands that the compliance period |5 extended LIl 14
August 2025, Our opinion is net modified In respect of this matter.

Hey Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional judgment, were of most significance in Gur audit of
the unconsolidated financial staterments of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of

qur audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in formirg our opinlan thereon, and we 8o
not provide a separate opinion on Wksse matters,

A mambar of

Nexia

Internatnal
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Following are the Key augit matters:

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA
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S.No

Kay Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1'

Cash and Bank Balance and Investments

As At 30 June 2024 the Modamaba's tobad
invastments amounts o Ruposs 21,202 mililon
as disciosed in note 17 and zash and bank
balances amounts 1o Rupees 47516 million as
disclosed in note 19 of the fnandal statements
representing 14.4% of the total assets of the
Modaraba,

The propar valuztion of cash and benk balances
and  Investments  for  the Modaraba  weore
consldered as a high-risk area and therefiors, we
consicer this as a Key Audit Matter (KAM),

We performed the following audit procedures;

Obtaned  an understanding  of  design
effcotiveness of the key controls on the cash
and bank talances and investments.

Cbtained  Independent  confirmations  for
werifying the existence of the bonk balapces as

at 30 June 2024 and reconcied it with the

boaoks and records of the Modaraba.

Re-performed valuation @ assess that the
irmestrments are carled as per the valustion
methodolegy  spedfied i the  accounting
policles,

Checked presertation and disdosure as per |

appicable Anancial reperting framewors.

Incoma from Murahaba Finance

Modarzba earns income from the mumabaha
financing which is its suhstantial income source
(Refer note 22.1 to the financial statement),

Curing the year, the Modaraba has recognized
income of Rupees 14,066 million,

We dentified income from  the  murabaha
financing as a key audit malter a5 iLis one of the
key performance Indicators of the Modaraba
amang Islamiz Financing and because of the
patential risk that income from the murabaka
financing transactions may not b2 accurately
recorded, recegnized in the appropriate period,
and not property disciosed in the finandzl
staterments.

Cur sudil procedures in respect of this matier
included the following:

Chigined an understanding, including tre

design and implementation of intemal controls

over recorcing and processing of murabaha
fncorme.,

fssessed  the  appropriateness of  the
Madaraba'’s accounting policy for recording of
income and in fine with the requirements of

appiicable law, accounting and reporiing |

standards;

Maiched customer contracts with the nceme
and  repayment  schedule,

performed |

recalculation on samigle basis to ensure that

Income is appropriately recorded and aiso
eveluated  Lhat  these

appropriate accounting period;

contacts  were |
approprigtely classified and recorded in the ;

I 2o
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= On sample basis, traced the instziments
received from the underlying records tgsued to
contract holders and applied substantive
analytical procedures to  determine  any
variations.

Information other than the unconsolidated financial statements and Auditer’s Report thereon

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the infommation incleged in the annual report but does not indude the unconsolidated financizl statements and
aur auditor's report thereon.

Cur opinfon on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the unconsalidated feancial statemeants, our mesponsibility s to read the other
information and, in daing seo, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
unconsolidated financial statemants or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears o be materially
misstated.

I, based on the wark we have performed, we conclude that there Is a materal misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company for the
Unconsolldated Financlal Statements

Management of the Modargba Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Modaraba Ecrrmﬂes and Modaraba (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
{(¥0XI of 1980} and for such internal control as management of the Modaraba Company determines Is necessary
to enable the preparation of uncansolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or erron

Tn preparing the uncensolidated financial statements, managemert of the Modaraba Company Is responsibie for
assessing the Modaraba's abllity to contlnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
golng concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management of the Modaraba Company
either intends to liquidate the Modaraba or to ceass opsrations, or has no realistc atternative but to do so.

Board of directors of the Modaraba Company are responsibie for overseeing the Modaraba's fnanclal reporting
Process,

Auditor's Responsibilitias for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance i5 3 high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it
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exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expecied to influence the economic decdisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
mairtain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financia! statements,
whether due to fraud or error;, design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinfon. The risk of not
detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional smissions, misrepresentations, or the override of inlernal
control;

b} Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on Lhe
effectiveness of the Modaraba's internal control;

¢} Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management of the Modaraba Company;

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Modaraba Company’s use of the going
roncern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Modaraba's ability to continue
as a going concern. IF we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements o, IF such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our condusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our audilor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Maodaraba to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e) Evaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the uaconsalidated finandal statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair preseatation.

We communicate with the board of directors of the Modaraba Company regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contral that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors of the Modaraba Company with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of direclors of the Modaraba Company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current
pericd and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
requlation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated In our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in cur opinion:

2) Proper books of acrount have been kepl by the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba as
required by Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 {XXXI of 1280);

b} the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss, the
urcensolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity
and the unconsolidated cesh flow statement tooether with the notes thereen have been drawn up in
conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flotation and Confrol) Ordinance, 1980 (OGKI
of 1980) ard are in agreement with the books of account;

¢} business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
by the Modaraba were in accordance with the obiects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba; and

d) no zakat was deducted at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Junaid Ashraf.

t Le

"RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

KARACHI

DATE: 04 OCTOBER 2024
UDIN: AR202410045P7bREW2T]
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024
2024 2023
ASSETS MNote Rlupees Rupees
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equiprent 4 13,102,420 12,071,509
Intangibles 5 205,924 794,176
Long term investrment & 9,980 -
Murahaha financing 7 31,982,963 41,453,148
Dimimishing musharaka financing 8 - 400,827
Musharaka financing L 12,000,000 12,000,000
Loan to employess ) 385,503 577,501
Long-term depasits 264,500 264,500
57,951,290 67,061,661

CURRENT ASSETS
Stock in trade 24,102,663 37,779,122
Trade debtors 11 175,324,983 91,409,541
Advances, prepayments and other recelvables 12 17,212,171 36,440,620
#odaraba financing 13 - 1,822 314
Shaort-term murabata financing 14 - 15,622,451
Current partion of non-current assets 15 57,638,004 75,769,872
Shaort-term depasit 2,707,194 3,950,000
Acrrued prafit i6 1,532,578 2,494,612
Sindh sakes tax recervatsbe - net 5,914,484 1,326,544
Advance Income tax and prepaid lavy-net 18 64,106,437 AY,580,620
Receivable against sale of Al-Burg - 1,221,554
Shart berm investment 17 21,208,669 20,776,415
Cash and bank balances 19 47,115,806 46,413,056

416,963,077 382,606,770
TOTAL ASSETS I\?&i&ﬂ? HBIBEB 431
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CERTIFICATE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorsed certificabe capital
25,000,000 certificates of Rupees 10/- aach 250,000,000 250,000,000
Izsued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital 20 137,884,193 137 884,193
Capital reserves 21 89,718,187 61,175,710
Fevienle reserves 22,392,468 22,392 468

249,994,848 221,452,371
LIABILITIES
NOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income Fr 7,962,634 8,520,320
Cartificates of musharaka 23 121,150,000 138,190,000

129,112,634 146,710,320
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors, accrued and other llabilities o 16,373,672 9,098,089
Current portion of deferred income 22 7,139,248 10,399,178
Currenl partion af cerbificates of musharaka 23 47,250,000 29,310,000
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payabis 25 2,800,000 3,850,000
Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka 26 3,514,280 3,613,638
Unsctaimed profit distributions lﬂ,?ﬂ;lﬂs 19,234,855

95,806,885 H1,505,740
TOTAL LIABILITIES 224,919,519 228,216,060
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES -H’:sﬂﬁﬂT 448,668,431
The annexed notes fram 01 o 44 form an integral part of thass financial statemeants.
For Paramount Investments Limited
{Managesment Company)

CHIEF FIMAMCLAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA
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2024 2023
Note  Rupees Rupees
Income from trading operations 28 88,983,786 37,791,060
Income from murabaha financing 221 14,065,787 21,365,050
Income from diminishing musharaka financing 108,939 275,112
Income from musharaka financing 1,993,135 3,277,208
105,151,647 62,708,430
Administration and operating expenses 29 (45,534,739) (36,161,337)
(Provision) [ reversal for doubtful recoveries - net (155,660) 8,723
Other income 30 8,194,969 5,201,589
67,656,217 31,757,405
Financial charges 31 (21,556,893) {18,391,565)
46,099,324 13,365,840
Modaraba Company's management fee 32 (4,609,932) (1,336,584)
41,489,392 12,029,256
Sindh workers' welfare fund (829,788) (240,585)
Profit before income tax and levy 40,659,604 11,788,671
Levy 33 (621,877) (137,014}
Profit before income tax 40,037,727 11,651,657
Income tax expense. 34 {11,495,250) (5,111,532)
Profit for the year 28,542,477 6,540,125
Earnings per certificate 3 2.070 0.474
The annexed notes from 01 to 44 form an intearal part of these financial statements.
For Paramount Investments Limited
{Management Company)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ‘DIRECTOR "DIRECTOR
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Profit after income tax 40,037,727 11,651,657
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account - -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss account - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 40,037,727 11,651,657
The annexed notes from 01 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements,

For Paramount Investments Limited
(Management Company)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 'DIRECTOR 'DIRECTOR
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2024 2023
Mot Rupeas Rupaas

CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit belore income Lax and lewvy 40,659,604 11,768,671
Adjustmants for non-cash itams:
Depracation and amortization 2,369,720 2,564,019
Loss { (gain} an disposal of fixed assets (367,0532) 21,669
Provision for Sindh Waorkess' Welfare Fund 829,788 240,585
Fimancial charges 3 21,556,803 18,391,565
Provision § (reversal) for doubtful recoveriss - net 155,660 {8,723}
Bad debbs writen off 3,730,868 1,633,418
Deposit set-off againat lability = 0,000

28,274,977 22,802 533

Dperating peafit before working capital changes 68,934,581 34,604,204
(Inerease] f decrease in current assets

Murabaha financing - net 39,803,857 40,306,175
Diminishing Musharska finsncing - net 683,764 2,782,842
‘Musharaka financing - met 3,000,000 11,050,946
Maodaraba financing - naet 1,822,314 101,064
Loans to employeas. 173,998 235,999
Long-term deposits = .
Stores and spares 13,676,459 {29, 098,501 3
Trade debtors. (87,846,310) (23,782,968}
Atvancos, prepayments and other recevables 19,228,449 {9,211,607)
Shart-term deposit 1,242,806 (3,950,000}
Receivable from Al-Burg mssocsies 1,221,554 6,092,000
Shrart Term Irvestrmient (532,254) {20,775,415)
Accrued profie 962,036 1,697,976
(Decrease) / incroase in current liabilities

Creditors, accrped and other Eabiilins 6,445,815 4,565,604
Deferred Incoms: (2,817,616) {5,667,551)
Met cash generated from operations 65,199,453 9,030,472
Financial charges paid (52,836) {56,028}
Income t2x and levy paid-nst {33,230,875) {11,707 161}
Mel cash generabted from / (used in) operating activities 31,915,742 {2,727 ,637)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment 4.1 (3,634,427) (2,717,653}
Irvestment in subeedisry (9,980} -
Sate proceed on disposals of Meed assets 690,000 59,9849
Addithon ¢ deleton in capital work-in progress - -
Met cash used in lnvesting activitles (2,954,407) {-E,Eﬂrﬁﬁﬂ}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cerbificate of Musharska - issuance 23 26,375,000 23,275,000
Certilicate of Mutharaka - rademplions (25,475,000) 33,275,000}
Paid against matured certificate of musharaka {7,050,000) ¥
Prafit pald to cartficates of Musharaka (COM) holder (21,603,415) {16,019, 269%
Profit distributed to certificate holdars (505,170) (1,900,614}
Met cash used in financing activitias (28,258,585) {28,810 BB}
Met increase [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents F02,750 (34,205,160}
ash and cash'equivalents at beginning of the year 46,413,056 80,618,236
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 47,115,806 6,413,056
The annexed notes from 01 to 44 form an ategral part of these financial statements.

For Paramount Investments Limited
{Management Company}
'CHIEF FINANCLAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFLCER DIRECTOR
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a)

FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

First Paramount Modaraba ("the Modaraba) is a multipurpose, perpetual and multidimensional
Modaraba floated under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 and the rules framed there under and is managed by Paramount Investments Limited (the
Management Modaraba), a company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) on June 26, 1994. The Modaraba is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.

The registered office is situated at Suit No. 107- 108, Frst Fioor, P.E.C.H.S. Community Office Complex,
Block 2, Shahrah-e-Quaidean, Karachi, in the province of Sindh,

The Modaraba's principal activities include deployment of funds on murabaha, modaraba and musharaka
arrangements and its in-house ventures are:

{a) Electrical maintenance and troubleshooting services” under the name of "FPM Solutions";
{b) Chemical business under the name of "FPM Petro Services™;

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented,
unless atherwise stated:

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance
These unconsolidated financial statements of the Modaraba have been prepared in accordance with
approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of;
The requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control} Ordinance,
1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulation 2021 and directives
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ([ASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017;

[slamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
In case where requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) differ, the Modaraba

Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Contral) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba Rules, 1981, the Modaraba Regulation, 2021 and directives issued by SECP shall prevail.
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During the year, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide S.R.0 203 (I)/2024 dated
February 15, 2024 introduced amendments in Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, which
resulted in change in the nomenclature of the primary heading of the financial statements. The said
amendments changed the name from "Balance Sheet” to "Statement of financial position”, and "Profit
and loss account” to "Statement of profit and loss™.

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
the measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments in accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 8 'Financial Instrument’, wherever applicable.

Permissible Islamic financial products including murabaha, musharaka and modaraba have been used by
the Modaraba, the accounting and presentation of the same are In line with the substance of the
transactions and their accounting is limited to the extent of actual amount of Facility utilized and
mutually agreed profit thereon. Accordingly, purchases, sales and musharaka profits / reserves are not
reflected in these unconsolidatad financial statements.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except for
cash flow statement,

Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Modaraba's
functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded to the
nearest rupees, except otherwise stated,

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also reguires the management to
exercise ts judgment in the process of applying the Modaraba's accounting policies. Estimates and
judgrments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonabie under the circumstances. The areas
where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Modaraba's unconsolidated financial
statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

i} Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairment

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits
are based on the analysis of the management of the Modaraba. Further, the Modaraba reviews the
value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the
future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment..

ii) Stock in trade

Stock in trade write-down Is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience
and selling goods of similar nature. 1t could change significantly as a result of changes in market
conditions. A review is made on each reporting date on Stock in frade for excess inventories,
obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an allowance is recorded against the Stock in
trade balances for any such declines.

N 2o
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Income tax and levy

In making the estimates for income tax and levy currently payable by the Modaraba, the
management takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate
authorities on certain issues in the past.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and
judgment. 1t is based on the lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and
makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each group. These
assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,
regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years
in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized,
provision is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the provision was originally
recognised as part of cost of an asset,

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance
obligation of the Modaraba is considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer,
as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and
therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

vii) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

In making an estimate of recoverable amount of the Modaraba's investments in subsidiaries, the
management considers future cash flows,

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year
and are relevant to the Modaraba

Followling amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Modaraba's
acrounting perlods beginning on or after July 01, 2023:

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Unconsolidated financial
statements’ and IFRS Practice Statement 2 'Making Materiality Judgement’).

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction {Amendments to IAS
12 “Income taxes’).

Change in definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors’).

Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes' - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules.

The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods,
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Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year
but not relevant to the Modaraba

There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on
or after July 01, 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the
Modaraba's uncensolidated financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these unconsolidated
financial statements.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective but relevant to the Modaraba

Following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory Tor
the Modaraba's accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2024 or later periods:

Classification of liabllities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 ‘'Presentation of
Unconsolidated financial statements") effective for the annual period beginning on or after January 01,
2024, These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is
classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by
requiring the assessment of the entity's right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settiement
of liability for at least twelve manths after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’,

On October 31, 2022, the TASB issued "Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) to
clarify how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period
affect the classification of a liability. The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or
after January 01, 2024,

On May 25, 2023, the IASB issued "Suppliers Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7and IFRS 7Y
to add disclosure requirements, and 'signposts’ within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities
to provide qualitative and guantitative information about supplier finance arangement. The
amendments are effective for reporting period beginning on or after January 01, 2024,

Amendments to IFRS 10 "‘Consclidated Unconsolidated financial statements” and [AS 28 'Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures' (deferred indefinitely) to clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution
of assets from an investor to its associates or joint venture, as follows: require full recognition in the
investor's unconsolidated financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or contribution of
assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 'Business Combinations?; require the partial
recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, l.e. a gain or loss is
recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in that associate or joint venture,
These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or
contribution of assets occur by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets
(resulting in loss of control of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves,

Lack of Exchangeability {Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”),
The amendments contain guidance to specify when a currency s exchangeable and how to determine
the exchange rate when it is nob. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 01, 2025,

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosure in Unconsolidated financial statements’ (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2027) with a focus on updates to the statement of profit and
loss. The objective of IFRS 18 is to set out reguirements for the presentation and disclosure of

‘information in general purpose unconsolidated financial statements to help ensure they provide relevant
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information that falthfully represents an entity's assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. The key
new concepts introduced In IFRS 18 relate to: the structure of the statement of profit and loss; required
disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements for certain profit and loss performance measures
that are reported outside an entity's unconsolidated financial statements (that is, management-defined
performance measures); and enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the
primary unconsolidated financial statements and notes In general. IFRS 18 will replace IAS 1; many of
the other existing principles in IAS 1 are retained, with limited changes. IFRS 18 will not impact the
recognition or measurement of Items in the unconsolidated financial statements, but it might change
what an entity reports as Its "'operating profit and loss',

The above standards and amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the
unconsolidated financial statements.

Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and
not considered relevant to the Modaraba

There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after July 0L, 2024 but are considerad not to be relevant or do not have any
significant impact on the Modaraba's unconsolidated financial statements and are therefore not detailed
In these unconsolidated financial statements.

Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairments, if any, Cost of property and
equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / construction period of
qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition.

Subszequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benafit associated with the item will flow to
the Modaraba and the cost of the jtem can be measured reliably. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized while normal replacements, repairs and malntenance are charged to unconsolidated
statement of profit and foss.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the reducing balance method at the rates
mentioned in note (4), Depredation on additions and disposals during the year is charged from the date
asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged from the date asset is disposed. When parts
of an item of asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate item in property and
equipment. The residual values and wseful lives are reviewsd at each reporting date and adjusted, if
required.

An item of property and equipment is de-recognized upon dispasal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal of property and eguipment are
determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are taken to the unconsolidated
statement of profit and loss account currently.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets (comprising of computer softwares) are stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized under the reducing balance method at
the rate of thirty percent per annum.

Tha carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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2.5

2,6

2.7

2.8

Loans to employees

Loans to employees are granted by Modaraba for purchasing of vehicles or for other purposes, as
approved by the management on a case to case basis, Loans granted are initially recorded at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are stated at amortized cost.

Murabaha financing

Murabaha transactions are reflected as receivable at the invoiced amount. Actual sale and purchase are
not reflected as the goods are purchased by the customer as agent of the Modaraba and all documents
relating lo purchase are in customer name, However the profit on that sale revenue nol due for
payment is deferred by recording a credit to "Deferred Murabaha Income” account.

Modaraba financing

Modaraba is a kind of partnership where one partner gives money to another for investing it In a
commercial enterprise. The investment comes from the first partner whao is called “rabb-ul-mal” (here
FPM), while the management and work is an exclusive responsibility of the other, who Is called
"mudarib” and the profits generated are shared in a predetermined ratio. Modaraba receivable are
reflected at principal amount.

Musharaka financing

Musharaka is an agreament between two or more parties to combine their assets, labour or liabilities for
the purpose of making profit. Modaraba is dealing in the following forms of Musharaka.

a) Diminishing musharaka

In diminishing musharaka based financing, the Modaraba enters into a Musharaka based on Shirkat-
ul-mulk (Joint arrangement) for financing an agreed share of fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or
machinery) with its customers and enters into yearic profit payments agreement for the utilization of
the Modaraba's Musharaka share by the customer. The customer with each rental payments also
purchases Modaraba's Musharaka share by paying additional amount and therefore becomes the
sole owner of the subject asset at the maturity of the diminishing musharaka.

b) Musharaka financing
Modaraba enters into financing with customers based on Shirkat-ul-aqd {contractual partnership) in
customers' operating businezs. Under this mechanism, the customer can withdraw and return funds
to the Modaraba subject to his running musharaka financing limit during the musharaka year. The
customer pays the provisional profit which is subject to final sattlement based on the actual results
of the business / transaction.

IFRS 9 "Financial instruments”

Investments and other financial assets
a) Classification

The Modaraba classifies its financlal assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortized cost

I 4
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The classification depends on the Modaraba’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of
profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the Modaraba has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Modaraba reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

b) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Modaraba measures a financial asset at its falr value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Modaraba's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Modaraba classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of princlipal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in statement of profit and
loss and presented in other income [ (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses, Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses),
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and
loss and recognized in other income /[ (other expenses). Interest income from these financial
assets s included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other income / (other expenses) and impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria’ for amortized cost or FYTOCL are measured at FVTPL. A gain
or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in the
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staterment of profit and loss and presented net within other income [/ (other expenses) In the
period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Modaraba subsequently measures all equity investments except for investment in subsidiary at fair
value for financial instruments quoted in an active market, the fair value corresponds to a market price
(level 1). For financial instruments that are not guoted in an active market, the fair value s determined
using wvaluation technigues Including reference to recent arm's length market transactions or
transactions involving financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted
cash flow analysis including, to the greatest possible extent, assumptions consistent with ebservable
market data (level 3).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Modaraba’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to statement of profit and loss., Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of eguity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
in other income / (other expenses) in the statement of profit and loss as applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in statement of profit and loss as
other income when the Modaraba's right to receive payments is established.

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement

Financlal llabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A finandial liability is classified
as at FVTPL iF it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recagnition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
de-recognition is also included in statement of profit and loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Modaraba assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVTOCL. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Modaraba applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach for measuring expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all financial assets, except in the case of calculation of
impairment provision on financial assets where the reguirements of the Prudential Regulations for
Modaraba applies, it is recognized as higher of {on customer basis):

= the provision reqguired under the Modaraba Regulations, 2021; and
« the provision required under [FRS 9 using the expected credit loss (ECL) model..
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Loss allowance on aduances_amil bank balances is measured at 12 months expected credit losses.
Since these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.
The Modaraba is also not expecting a material impact on loan to employees and deposits,

ii) De-recognition
a) Financial assets

The Modaraba derecognizes a finandal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such
derecognized financial assets thatl is created or retained by the Modaraba is recognized as a
separate asset or lability,

b) Financial liabilities

The Modaraba derecognizes a fimancial liahility (or a part of financial liability) from its statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or

expires.
iii) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the
unconsolidated financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the

Modaraba intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

29 Investment in subsidiary company

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, in accordance with the
provisions of 1AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements'.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with banks in current and deposit accounts and
Investments with short term maturity.

2.11 Stock in trade

Stock In trade Is valued at lower of net reallzable value or cost. Cost of Items of stores and spares Is
determined as invaice value plus other charges accrued thereon to the balance sheet date. Provision is
made annually in the unconsolidated financial statements for slow moving and obsolete items if

required.
Met realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the product in the ordinary

course of business less cost of completion and estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the
sale,
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Trade debtors and other receivables

Trade debtors and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for
doubtful receivables based on review of outstanding amounts as per expected credit losses model (ECL)
as reqguired by IFRS 9 as at year end date.

Joint Operations (Musharaka arrangements)

The Modaraba has certain contractual arrangements with other participants to engage in joint activities,
where all significant operating and financial policies are predetermined by the participants, such that the
Musharik has no significant independence to pursue its own strategies.

The unconsolidated financial staterments of the Modaraba include its prorata share of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenseas in joint operation and are accounted for on the basis of profit statements.

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents profit set aside to comply with the Prudential Regulations for Maodarabas
lssued by the SECP vide S.R.0. 284(1)/2021 dated March 05, 2021. These Regulations require Modaraba
which is not compliant with minimum equity requirements as provided in the regulations, shall create
reserve fund to which shall credit an amount equivalent to 100% of of its annual after-tax profit til such
time the minimum equity reguirements are complied with, During the year, the Modaraba transferred
100%: of its after tax profit.

Certificates of musharaka

Certificates of musharaka are recognized initially at cost, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these are stated at amortized cost.

Profit on these arrangements is recognized as expense in the year in which they are incurred and is
accounted for on the basis of projected profit. The effect of adjustments, if any, between actual rate
and projected rate of profit is accounted for at the end of each guarter after determination of actual
profit.

Creditors and other liabilities

Creditors and other liabilities are recognized Initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any,
and subseguently measured at amortized cost,

Impairment
a) Non financial assets

The Modaraba assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets may be
impaired. If such Indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess
whether they are recorded in excess of thelr recoverable amaunt. Where carrying values exceed the
respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the
resulting impairment loss is recognized in statement of profit and loss. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use,

Where impairment loss subseguently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased (o
tower of revised recoverable amount or initial cost of asset less accumulated depreciation (if any) to
date. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income.

L—IEI\
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b) Revenue recognition
Revenue s recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Modaraba Is
expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each
contract with a customer, the Modaraba follows the below steps.
Step 1: Identify the contract with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Modaraba satisfies a performance obligation
For each sale transaction, purchase order forms a contract between the Modaraba and a customer
and the goods to be delivered under that contract are the Modaraba's identified performance
obligation, the contract contains determined and allocated transaction price. The Modaraba satisfies
a performance obligation on delivery of goods to the customer and recognises the revenue.
- Profit / return on deposits / investments is recognized using tentative profit rates.

Income from Murabaha is accounted for on finalization of Murabaha transaction, However, profit
on that portion of revenue not due for payment (deferred murabaha income) is deferred and
recognized on time proportionate basis.

Musharaka management fee is recognized when related services are provided.
Rental income from generators is recognized on time proportionate basis.
- Profit en diminishing musharaka financing is recognized using tentative profit rates.

Profit on musharaka financing is recognized on declaration of profit by musharaka partners on
accrual basis.

- Realized capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the profit and loss
account on the date at which the transaction takes place.

Dividend Income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established,
2,18 Income tax expense and levy
Current
Provision for current tax and levy |s based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the prevalling law for taxation of Income. The charge for current tax Is calculated using prevalling
tax rates. Final taxes levied under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and any excess over the amount
designated as provision for current tax are charged as levy in statement of profit and loss. The charge

for current tax aiso includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax and levy
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years,

I 4o
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During the vear the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) have withdrawn the Technical
Release 27 "IAS 12, Income Taxes {Revised 2012)" and issued guidance — "IAS 12 Application Guidance
on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes”, The sald guidance requires certaln amounts of tax
paid under minimum tax (which is not adjustable against future income tax liability) and final tax
regimes to be shown separately as a levy instead of showing It in current tax.

Previously, component representing lewvy was included in provision for current tax and was not
separately charged in statement of profit and loss. This change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS 8) —
‘Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. There has been no effect on the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and eaming per certificate as a result of
this change. The change resulted in following reclassification of corresponding figures:

30 JUME 2024 30 JUNE 2023
Adeur el hﬂﬂl::::th]
Had there been no Impact of incorporating baen no it aF Frocts of
change in changs in palicy effects of changa | change in ﬂnm-unm'“h policy| change
accounting policy in accounting accounting iy’
policy policy g
policy
Amount in Rupees
Effect on statement of profit and loss
Prafit before nomes Lax 40,659,604 {621,877) ‘40,037,727 11,788,671 {137,014} 11,651,657
Ly - Firil B - {G21,877) (621,877]) - {137,014) (137,004}
Tncomat ba expornse {12,117,127}| 621,877 [I.:I.,-'I-‘IS.IID;II 5‘5;24;3.5461 137,014 (5,111,533}
Effect on statement of finandlal position
Advance noome tax 64,106,437 B 654,106,437 47,580,629 - 47,580,629
Prepaid kEwy - - - =
Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance shest liability method on all major temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the tax base
used in computation of the taxable profit.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it Is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in statement of the profit and loss, except to the extent that it
refates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Levy

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount
paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable Income or any minimum tax which is not
adjustable against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the statement of profit and loss as
these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/IAS 37.
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2.19 Operating segments

3I

31

3.2

3.3

An operating segment Is a component of the Modaraba that engages In business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Modaraba's other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Management Modaraba’s Chief Executive Officer and Board of Directors to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available, In review and evaluation performance process, the business is
considerad as a single operating segment and the Modaraba's business |s evaluated on an overall basis
other than musharaka arrangement with joint venture partner which is monitored separately.

Segment results that are reported for review and performance evaluation include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly corporate assets, administrative expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure s the total cost incurred during the year to acquire Property and
equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Other than material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial
statements are set out below for ease of user's understanding of these unconsolidated financial
statements, These polices have been applied consistently for all perlods presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees at rates of exchange on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at
the rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are charged to profit and
loss account currently.
Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan
The Modaraba operates approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its employees.
Equal menthly contributions are made both by the Modaraba and the employees at the rate of
8.33% percent per annum of the basic salary,
b} Compensated absences

The Modaraba accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the year
in which they are earned.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
reguired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
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3.4  Profit distributions and appropriations

Profit distributions are recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated financial statements in the year in
which these are approved. Transfers to statutory reserve and the mandatory appropriations as may be
required by law are recognized In the year to which these relate.

3.5 Earnings per certificate (EPC)

The Modaraba presents basic and diluted earnings per certificate (EPC) data for Its certificate. Basic EPC
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to certificate holders of the Modaraba by the
weighted average number of certificates outstanding during the year, Diluted EPC is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to certificate holders and the weighted average number of
certificates outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential certificates.
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6.1

7.

7.1

INTANGIBLES - Computer Software Note

As at 01 July

Cost

Accumulated amortization
MNet book value

Year ended 30 June

Opening net book valus
Amaortization charge for the year:
Met book value

As at 30 June

Cost

Accumulated amortization
MNet book value

Rate of amortization (%)
LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

In subsidiary- at cost
Invastment in Paramount Compliance (Private) Limited 6.1

FIRST PARAMOUNT
ORARABA
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
2,976,738 2,976,738
(2,682,562) 2,550,487
294,176 420,251
294,176 420,251
(88,252) [126,075)
205,924 294,176
2,976,738 2,976,738
(2,770,814) (2,682,552)
205,924 794,176
20 30
9,980 =

During the reporting period, the Modaraba has subscribed 998 ordinary shares of Paramount Compliance (Private) Limited,

representing 99,8% of the share capital of Pammount Compliance (Private) Limited.

MURABAHA FINANCING - SECURED

Considerad good
Considered doubtful

Less; Provision for doubtful recoveries 71

Less: Current portion of murabaha financing

Movement in provision for doubtful recoveries

Balance as at 01 July
Charge for the yaar
Reversal made during the vear

Balance as at 30 June 7.4

75,462,003 99,799,029
2,115,568 2,388,324
77,577,571 102,187,353
{2,115,568) (2,388,324)
75,462,003 99,799,029
{43,479,040) (58,345,881)
31,982,963 41,453,148
2,388,324 2,506,985
367,425 -
(640,181) (118,661)
(272,756) (118,661)
2,115,568 2,388,324

The Modaraba has sold goods under Murabaha arrangements whereby payment is deferred along with specified] profit
margin. Murabaha sale is receivable in installments. Thess amrangements are secured by way of hypothecation [ pladge of
stocks, mortgage of properties, demand promissory notes, charge on assets and personal guarantees. The combined farced
sales valua (FSV) of the underlying assets as security amounts to Rupeses 373.047 milfion (2023 Rupess 505.531 million) in

aggregate.
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7.3 These facliities have various maturity dates up to 16 May 2027, Effective profit rate on these arrangements ranges from 18%
to 26% (2023: 18% to 24%),

7.4 As fully explained n note 2.9 the Modarabs also applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to evaluate the provisioning
impact, Consequertly,it is recognized as higher of the provision required under the Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and the
provision reguired under IFRS 9 using the expected credit loss (ECL) modal.

7.5 Contractual installments receivable on Murabaha financing facilities:

[ Principal ||  Profit |  Total |
2024 Rupees Rupees Rupees
Overdue 2,115,568 - 2,115,568
Due within one year 36,339,792 7,139,248 43,479,040
Due after one year but within five years 22,584,921 9,398,042 31,982,963
Duwe after five years - - -
61,040,281 16,537,290 77,577,571
| Principal I|  profit | Total |
2023 Rupees Rupees Rupees
Overdue 2,388,324 - 2,388,324
Dwe within one year 48,959,319 9,386,562 58,345,881
Due after one year but within five years 30,153,906 11,299,242 41,453,148
Due after five years - - -
81,501,549 20,685, 804 102,187,353

7.6 The sbove except for overdue balance represents installments receivable by the Modaraba in future vears in respect of
Murabaha financing facilities given under long-term arrangements.

2024 2023
8. DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA FINANCING- SECURED Note Rupees Rupees
Considered good - 683,764
Less; Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing - {282,937)
- 400,827

8.1 This represents financing provided to individual under diminishing musharaka arrangement for purchase of building. The
effective profit rate on this arrangement is ; NIl (2023; 22.8%) per annum, The financing is secured by mortgage of
properties of the borrower. The combined forced sales value (FSW) of the underlying assets as security is : Nil (2023: Rupees
5.856 millinn} in aonreoate.

8.2 Contractual rentals receivable on Diminishing Musharaka financing facilities are as follows:

Due within one year - 282,937
Due after one year but within five years - 400,827
- 683,764
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WODARABA
2024 2023
9. MUSHARAKA FINANCING - SECURED Note Rupees Rupees
Musharaka agreaments for:
Considered good:
Food procducts 9.1 12,000,000 12,000,000
Microsoft power project 4.2 = 2,500,000
12,000,000 14,500,000
Considered doubtful:
Books printing - 11 9.3 13,949,054 14,449,054
Less:Provision for doubtiul recoveries 8.5 - -
25,949,054 28,949,054
Less: Current portion of musharaka financing (13,949,054) (16,949,054)
12,000,000 12,000,000

a.1 The Modaraba has entered into a Musharaka arrangement with Musharaka partner for distribution of food products like
milk, biscuits etc. The Modaraba's share of Investment s 30% of the total financing required by Musharaka partner and
profit on jnvestment is shared in the ratio of 35:65 (2023: 35:65) between Modaraba and Musharaka partner
respectively. This financing |s secured by way of mortgage of property.

9.2 Durlng the prior yvear, the Modaraba entered into @ Musharaka arrangement amounting to Rupees 2.5 million for a
Microsoft SharePoint project as the Musharaka partner, This arrangsment was fulfilled in the prior year, and in the
current year, the Modaraba has fully recovered the financing from the Musharaka partner.

0.3 During the preceding years, the Modaraba signed a Musharaka arrangement amounting to Rupees 20 million for pﬁnﬂng
of 272,766 books with a Musharaka partrer, The profit on the investment is shared in the ratio of 64.09:35.91 (2023
64.09:35.91) between Modaraba and the Musharaka partner respectively. The financing is secured by way of mortgage
of immoveable property, This arrangement was fulfilled in prior years and the Modaraba is in process to recover the
financing as per agreement, from the Musharaka partner.

9.4  The combined forced sales value (FSV) of the underlying assets as security against musharaka financing amounts to
Rupees 105,140 million {2023: Rupees 80,949 million) in aggregate.

9.5 Mo provision has been recognized due to the availability of the forced sale value benefit of the collateral held as security
against financing, Furthermore, as fully explained in note 2.9 the Modaraba also applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
model to evaluate the provisioning Impact. Consequently, as per the ECL madel under IFRS 9, the Impalrment Impact is
mizterially same to the provisioning requirements under Modaraba Regulations, 2021,

9.6 Contractual installments receivable on Musharaka financing Tacilities:

Due within ane year 13,949,054 16,949,054
D after one year 12,000,000 12,000,000
25,949,054 28,943,054

i0. LOAN TO EMPLOYEES - SECURED

Loan to employees 595,503 760,501
Less: Current portion of loan to employees (210,000) (192,000}
ﬁm H?ism

‘10.1  This represents profit free personal loans provided to employess of Modaraba ranging from Rupees 0.03 million to
Fupees 0.5 milllon. These are repayable over a maximum peried of 10 years and secured against their provident fund
balance, The fair value adjustment in accordance with requirements of IFRS- 2 "Financial Tnstruments® in respect of long
tarm foan [s not considened material and hence not recaognlzed.
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11.

11.1

TRADE DEBTORS - UNSECURED

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss
Balance as at 01 July
Recognized during the yvear
Bad debts writhen off during the year
Balance as at 30 June

Ageing analysis of trade debtors are as follows:

Mot yet due

Upto 30 days

31 to 90 days

91 days to 15& days
More than 180 days

ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Due from associated undertakings
Advance against purchase of stock
Advance against expenses
Advance against salaries
Short-term prepayments

Due from AML project

Other receivables

11.1

12.1

12.2

12.3
12.4

FIRST PARAMOUNT

MODARABA
2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
175,324,983 91,40_9,54'1
459,825 4441612
175,794,808 95,851,153
4,441,612 4,331,674
428,416 109,538
(4,400,203) -
469,825 4,441,612

175,324,983 91,409,541

164,972,809 87,614,237
4,290,308 3,552,834
6,112,191 36,270

- 302,701

419,500 4,345,111
175,794,808 95,851,153
79,885 6,893,714

- 17,400,297

35,029 948,709
58,000 19,000
704,364 659,732
14,754,723 8,653,703
1,580,170 1,825,465
17,212,171 36,440,620

The maximum aggregate amount due from associated undertakings at the end of any maonth during the year was Rupees

0.080 milllen (2023: Rupees 7.047 million ).

The maximum aggregate amount due from officers and employees at the end of any month during the year was Rupees

0,200 million (2023; Rupees 0.199 million),

This includes operational expenses bhorne by the Modaraba on behalf of the AML project, The Modaraba has entered into
an arrangement with an individual to engage In a business segment under tha name and style of "FPM AML/CFT
Solutions,” serving the corporate and finandial sector. The Modaraba is responsible for managing the project's operations
as the “Modarib™ and may temporarily advance upte Rupees 16 million to the project, while the other party Is
responsible for investing in the project as the "Raab-ul-Maal.” The net profit from this contract is shared between the
Modarik and Raab-ul-Maal in & ratio of 65:35. The movement in balance due to / (from) AML project is as under:

Opening balance as at 1 July
Add: Payments made during the year on behalf of project

Lecs: Recovered from the project
Balance as at 30 June

8,693,703
123,242,478
(17,181,458)

1,756,617
11,889,671
(4,952,585)

14754723 8693703

The AML project has consistently incurred losses since its Inception. In adherence to the Islamic princlple of Modaraba
financing, these logses shall be borne by the Raab-ul-Maal, Consequently, no loss have been recorded in the Modaraba's

books.
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12.4 This includes Rupess 1.2 million deducted directly from the bank account of the Modaraba on the instruction of the
Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) vide letter no. CIR/Zone-1/CRTO/KHI/2016/2544 dated 15 December 2016 on account
of non deduction of withholding tax. (refer Note 273,

i3, MODARABA FINANCING - SECURED & CONSIDERED DOUBTFUL

Balance as at 01 July 1,822,314 1,923,382
Less: Recoverad during the year (1,822,314) (101,068)
Balance as at 30 June - 1,822,314
Less: Provision for doubtful recovenes - -
= 1,822,314

13.1 In the prior year the Modaraba signed and fulfilled an arrangement with Advanced Power Solutions and Technologies
(APS) for installation of new UPS systems and uparading of existing UPS systems of -a bank, at its branches all over
Pakistan. The profit on the investment is shared between Modaraba and APS in the ratio of 50:50. The financing was
secured by way of mortgage of property. Tn the current year full amount of financing is recovered by Modaraba.

14. SHORT-TERM MURABAHA FINANCING - SECURED

Considersd good - 13,775,122
Considered doubtiul - 1,847,369
- 15,622,491

Less: Provision for doubtiul recoveries - -
= 15:612-4g1

141 During the year all of the short term murbaha financiing arrangements have been completely settled. Effective profit on
these arrangements ranged from 11%: to 14% per annum received on agreed terms during the year,

15. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Current portion of murabaha financing 7 43,479,040 58,345,881
Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing 8 - 282,937
Current portion of musharaka financing g 13,949,054 16,949,054
Current portion of loans to employees 10 210,000 192,000
57,638,004 75,765,872
16. ACCRUED PROFIT
Profit receivable on musharaka financing 949,377 2,200,372
Profit recesvable on diminishing musharaka financing - 14,223
Frofit receivable on bank deposits 583,199 280,017
hSEEJ‘E 5:494:511
17. SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
AL Tair value through profit or loss
Pak Qatar-daily dividend plan 17.1 21,308,669 20,776,415
17.1 Movement in short term investmeant
Opening investment 20,776,415 -
Add:Purchase during the year - 20,000,000
Add: Profit Reinvested (Dividend-net of tax) 3,532,254 776,415
Less: Redemption during the vear (3,000,000) -
Closing investment (213,087 units) 669 ini??ﬁililS

I
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ADVANCE INCOME TAX AND PREPAID LEVY-MNET

Advance income tax-net

Advance Income tax 181 74,987,763 51,599,370

Less: Provision for taxation (10,881,326) (4,018,741)
64,106,437 47,580,629

Prepaid levy-net

Prepaid lewy 621,877 137,014

Less: Levy payable (621,B77) {137,014)
64,106,437 47,580,629

This includes an amount of Rupees 46.96 milllen {2023 Rupees 37.83 million) refundable from Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR) as per Income Tax Returns filed for relevant tax years,

2024 2023
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cazh in hand 87,672 70,148
Cash at banks
- Current accounts 19.1 9,130,126 11,972,070
- Deposit acoounts 19.2 819.3 37,898,008 34,370,838

I-TIIIEeUE 45.-413‘1]55
This include R.upEEE 0.563 million | 2023: Rupees 0.757 milllon) in respect of FPM-AML profect. (refer Note 11.3),

This includes Rupees 5.166 milllon (2023 Rupees 7.468 million) in respect of Redemption Reserve Fund established on
account of Cartificate of Musharaka,

Thesa carries profit rate in respect of deposit accounts ranging from 11.010% ko 21.550% (2023: 4.76% to 12.18%) per
annum,

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of certificates) Rupees Rupees
11,989,930 11,989,930 Certificates of Rupess 10 each fully paid In
cash, 119,899,298 119,899,298
1,798,450 1,708,400 Bonus cerificates issuad of Rupeas 10 each. 17,984, 895 17,084,605
13,788,420 13,788,420 137,884,193 137,884,193

As at June 30, 2024, Paramount Investments Limited (the Management Company) holds 14.28% (2023; 14.26%)
representing 1,965,768 cartificates (2023: 1,965,768 certificates) of the Modaraba.

CAPITAL RESERVES
Statutory reserve 1.1 87,783,027 55,240,545
Merger reserve 21.2 1,935,160 1,935,160

89,718,187 61,175,709

50



(.‘?: w5t Parvamaunt Modaraba
(Anislamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PAR ﬁ'wi;l:if\
MODARABA

RAREAT s PHBSIET o mARET

21.1  Statutory reserve represents profit set aside to comply with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by the SECP
vide 5.R.0, 2841)/2021 dated March 05, 2021, These Regulations reguire Modaraba which is not compliant with minimum
equity reguirements as provided in the regulations, shall create reserve fund to which shall credit an amount equivalent to
100% of of its annual after-tax profit till such time the minimum equity requirements are complied with, During the year,
the Modaraba transferred 100% of its after tax profits amounting to Rupees 28.54 millon (2023 Rupees .54 million).

21.2  In accordance with decision of the Honourable High Court of Sindh as on December 08, 2004, the First Mational Modaraba
(FMM) was merged with the Modaraba. The Modaraba received a sum of Rupees 10.568 million from FNM, including
Rupees 8,663 million as a certificate capital and Rupess 1.935 million as capital reserve.

2024 2023
22, DEFERRED INCOME Note Rupees Rupees
Deferred murabaha income 221 15,101,882 18,919,498
15,101,882 14,519,498
Less: Current portion of deferred Income {7,139,248) (10,399,178)
?,% B,520,320
22.1 Deferred murabaha income
Balance as at 01 July 18,919,498 24,587,049
Add: Deferred income for the year 10,736,820 15,697,499
Less; Income recognized during the year (14,065,787) (21,365,050)
Less: Transferred to suspense income (488,649) -
Balance as at 30 June Elnhm 18,919,408
23. CERTIFICATES OF MUSHARAKA
Balance as at 01 July 167,500,000 177,500,000
Issued during the year 26,375,000 23,275,000
Redeemed during the year {25,475,000) (33,275,000}
168,400,000 167,500,000
Less: eurrent partion of certificates of musharaka (47,250,000) (29,310,000}
Batance as at 30 June lﬁlﬁﬂ,ﬂﬂﬁ 138,190,000
23.1 In accordance with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by the SECP through 5.R.0. 284(1)/2021 dated March

5, 2021, the authority to issue Certificates of Musharaka (COM) by a Modaraba will be automatically suspended if the
Modaraba becomes non-compliant with any of the conditions outlined in Regulation 19 of the Prudential Regulations,
However, existing Modarabas with valid permissions to issue COM, which are non-compliant, are reguired to achieve
compliance within one year of the effective date of these requlations provided that, during this one-year interim perind, the
total COM of such Modarabas will be capped at the existing level, e, the outstanding balance as of the date the
regulations came into force.

On August 15, 2022, the SECP, via SR.O. 1547{1)/2022, amended these regulations, These amendments extend the
compoliance peariod o three years in cases of non-compliance with the conditions outiined in Regulation 17(1) subject to
certain conditions. The Modaraba, based on legal advice, understands that the complance period for Regulation 19 is also
considered as extended to 3 years given the conditions of Regulation 19 are that of Regulation 17(1).

A5 of the reporting year-end, the Modaraba remains non-compliant with the credit rating and minimum equity reguirements
stipulated In Regulation 17 and 19 respectively, The management, however, maintains that the deadline for full compliance
= August 14, 2025, based on the amendments introduced on August 14, 2022, which modified the compliance timeline,
This interpretation is further supported by the conduct of the regulator and aligns with the legal principle of “None
Retroactivity.” The management is confident to comply with the requirements within the extended compliance date |.e.
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23.2 These certificates have different denominations and are repayable within three months to five years, The expected share of
profit on these certificates ranges from B.5% to 14.5% (2023; 79 bto 129%:) per annurm,

23.3 A Redemption Reserve Fund Is established en account of Certificate of Musharaka (refer Note 19.2).

2024 2023
24, CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees

Due to associated undertakings 286,837 -
Creditors 4,314,680 1,190,140
Accrued expenses 1,843,534 1,479,324
sindh workers' welfare fund 2,510,191 1,680,403
Withholding income tax 3,287,505 1,920,996
Share of modarib payatile under FPM petro 1,915,687 1,591,369
Payable to provident fund - 136,009
Cthers 2,215,238 1,099,828

1&3 Zaﬁ?l 9. 098 (69

25, This represents amount payable to legal successors of musharaka holders which is due but unclaimed dus m pending
documentation on death of the respective musharaka holders.

26. ACCRUED PROFIT ON CERTIFICATES OF MUSHARAKA

Balance as at 01 July 3,613,638 2,198,270
Add: Accrued during the year 21,504,057 18,334,637
Less: Paid during the year (21,603,415) (16,919,269)
Balance as at 30 June 3,514,280 3,613,638

27. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Contingencies

Name of the court, agency or | Description of the proceedings and raelief Principle Parties | Date instituted

authority sought
i Commissioner Inland Revenue  During the prior year, the Sindh Revenue Board  Sindh Revenue
(SRB) has raised accumulated demand  of Board and 18-Jul-18

Rupees 7.064 million vide ardars 6§29 of 2019, Medaraba
632 of 2019, 635 of 2019 and 636 of 2019
dated 19 July 2019, 23 July 2019, 25 July 2019
and 29 July 2019, on the grounds that the
Modaraba's activities fall under tariffs 9809,
9822, 9822.2 and 9822.3 of Second Schedule of
the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 (the
Act).The Assistant Commissioner of  Sindh
Renenue  Board (SRE) after  providing
opportunity of being heard to Madaraba, issued
order vide 915 dated 27 April 2022, whereby
the Commissioner demanded the sales tax and
penalty amounting to Rupess 7.56 million ang
0,708 million respectively for the tax periods
July 2011 to June 2017 on account of mon-
chargaability of Sindh Sales Tax against rental
income of the modaraba. The modaraba has
filed appeal before the Commissionar Appeals -
SRB and did not record any provision for this
matter, as their tax advisor is confident that the
pending  appeal  will be decided in the
modaraba’s faveur,
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Mame of the court, agency or | Description of the proceedings and refief Principle Parties | Dete instituted

authority sought
i Commissioner Inland Revenue  An amount of Rupees 1.2 million has been  Sindh Revenue
deducted from the bank account of the Board and 15-Dec-16

Modaraba on the instructions of the FER vide Modaraba
letter #CIR/Zone-1/CRTO/KhI/2016/2544 dated
15 Decamber 2016 on account of nen deduction
of withholding tax, The matter was taken to
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Aopeal TII),
Karachi who remanded back the case fo the
officer with directiens to provide an opportunity
af being heard to the Appellant. The worthy
Commissioner In its Order wvide no. 26/2017
dated 26 January 2017 has remanded the
matter to the revenue. Managemant 15 confident
that the deducted amount will be refunded,
therefore, no expense has been booked in this
regard.

2024 2023
b) Commitments MNote Rupees Rupaes

There were no commitments outstanding as at the reporting date (2023: Nil).

Letter of Guarantees %m 317,500

28, INCOME FROM TRADING OPERATIONS

Income From:
- FPM Petro 28.1 86,884,917 31,602,424
- FPM Solution 28.2 2,098,869 6,188,636

88,983,786 37,791,060

28.1 Income from FPM petro

Revenue - nat 28.1.1 548,977,083 782,218,779
Less: Direct costs
Cost of sales 28.1.2 410,616,724 229,741,862
Transportation charges 3,580,888 3,753,650
Lakour chargss 1,926,712 1,040,658
Lab testing 189,850 123,275
Share of modarib 45,777,992 15,956,910
462,092,166 250,616,355

86,884,017 31,602 424

28.1.1 This represents rejlmm.ie (net of sales tax) generated from chemical business of FPM Petro Services. Sales tax charged on
sales tax inveloes issued during the year in aggregate amountad to Rupees 99.44 million (2023: 50.2 milllon).

28.1.2 Cost of sales

Opening stock 37,779,122 8,680,322
Purchasas 396,940,265 758,840,662
Less: closing stock (24,102,663) (37,779,122}

Cost of sales llﬂlﬁlil?mt El‘ﬂllfﬂlllaﬁl
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28.2 Income from FPM solution Mote Rupeas Rupees
Rewvanua - nat 821 3,974,177 15,276,583
Less: cost of revenue 1,875,308 0,087,947
am:m 6, 188,636

28.2.1 This represents revenue (net of Sindh Sales Tax on Services) generated from Project Power solution business of FPM
Solutions. This includes income from Service Level Agreements (SLA) entered into by FPM Solutions with the client to
provide services In respect of stand by generators, UPS and other power back up solutions, Sindh sales tax on services
charged on sales tax Invelees |ssued during the year in agaregate amounted to Rupees 0.424 milllon (2023: 2.050
million}.

29, ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and benefits 29.1 18,859,762 16,501,165
Litllitles 2,338,144 1,412,749
Repairs and maintenance 593,498 472,590
Takaful 609,676 339,138
Rent, rateés and taxes 29.2 2,597,253 2,341,224
Travelling and conveyance 5,057,948 3,158,255
Communications 1,209,488 654,448
Printing and stationery 407,950 452,381
Auditors' remuneration 29.3 840,000 708,750
Legal and professional 427,360 460,000
Fees and subscriptions 4,809,236 4,599 245
Bad debts written-off 3,730,868 1,633,418
Stock In trade- written off 113,480 -
News papears and periodicals 9,560 11,855
Advertisement and publicity 36,000 122,500
Depreciation and amortization 2,369,720 2,564,019
Loss on disposal of fixed asset - 21,669
Cthers 1,524,796 707,830

45,534,739 36,161,337

Salaries, allowances and benefits include 0.639 million Rupeeas (2023: Rupees 0.548 millien) on account of the Modaraba's
contribution to the staff provident fund.

This includes Rupees 1,053 million charge by director {2023: Rupees 0.933 million) In respect of rent for office premises,

Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit fee 504,815 493,500
Half yearly review fae 118,148 115,500
Certification fee 102,037 99,750
Consolidation fes 115,000 -

840,000 708,750

54



First Pavamaunt Wodaraba
(Anvislamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA
2024 2023
30. OTHER INCOME Mote Rupees Rupees
Financial assets - shariah compliant
Profit on bank depasits 3,681,168 3,794,062
Dividend income 4,145,849 913,429
Others - 494,098
Mon-financial assets
Others 367,952 -
8,194,969 5,201,589
31. FINANCIAL CHARGES
Profit on certificates of musharaka 21,504,057 18,334,637
Bank charges 52,836 56,828
21,556,893 18,391 565

'32. MODARABA COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT FEE
The Management Company is entitied to & remuneration for services rendered to the Modaraba under the provisions
of the Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 upto a maximum of 10% per
annum of the net annual profits of the Modaraba, The fee for the year ended 30 June 2024 has been recognized at
10%: {2023: 10%) of prafit for the year.

33. LEVY

Final tax 33.1 621,877 137,014

33.1 This represents portion of final tax paid under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001), representing
fewy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1A5 37,

34. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current
for the yvear 10,881,326 4,018,741
for prior year 613,924 1,082,791
11,495,250 5,111,532
Deferred 341 - -
11,495,250 5,111,532
Relationship between income tax expense and
accounting profit
Profit before income tax 40,037,727 11,651,657
Tax @ 29% (2023: 29%) 11,610,941 3,378,081
Effect of:
Accalerated depraciation 24,292 346,475
Provision for expected credit loss 35,581 503,714
Prior year 613,924 1,092,791
Other computational adjustments (789,488) (210,429)
11 250 5,111,532
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2024 2023
34.1 DEFERRED TAX (ASSET) / LIABILITY Note Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax asset comprises of:
{Deductible) temporary differences on:
Murabaha financing {177,621) (180,385)
Musharaka financing = -
Trade debtors {122,693) {1,288,067)
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities (1,514,043) -
{1,814,356) (1,468,453)
Deferred tax liability comprises of:
Taxable temporary differences on:
Property and equiprment 594,985 997,938
(1,219,371) (470,515)
Unrecognized deferred tax asset 34.2 1,219,371 470,515
As at 30 June = =
34.2 Deferred tax asset as at June 30, 2024 to the extent of Rupees 1.219 million (June 30, 2023: 0.471 million) has not

been recognized as the Modaraba is uncertain about the timing and extent of futurs taxable profits against which

such benefits can be utilized.

35. EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit for the year (RUPEES) El“!l"? 6,540,125
Weighted average number of certificates (NUMBERS) 13,788,420 13,788 420
Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted {RUPEE) 2.070 0.474
35.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic eamnings per share of the Modaraba, since there are no convertible
instruments in issue as at June 30, 2024 (2023: Nil) which would have any effect on the earnings per certificate If
the option to convert is exercised.
36. CHANGES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Financing Financing cash Mon Cash
2024 01 July 2023 cash infl outfl changes 30 June 2024
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Unclaimed profit
distributions 19,234,855 - (505,170) - 18,729,685
Accrued profit on
certificates of
musharaka &El_!-‘ﬁ!ﬂ - szhsuausl 21,504,057 3is1ﬁm
COM matured
parties 9,850,000 - 5§ﬂ5ﬂ5ﬂﬂu! :ﬁu_ggm
Certificates of
musharaka 167,500,000 zsiarsau ;Islds?s‘ﬂllgl - 168,400,000
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Financing || Financing cash Non Cash
2023 01 July 2022 h inflows outflows changes 30 June 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Undlgimed profit
distributions 21,135,469 - (1,900,614) - 19,234 855
Accrued profit on
certificates of
musharaka 2,198,270 “ (16,919,269) 18,334,637 3,613,638
COM matured
parties 1,850,000 - = 8,000,000 9,850,000
Certificates of
musharaka 177,500,000 23,275,000 (33,275,000) - 167,500,000
37. REMUNERATION OF OFFICERS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
2024 2023 |
Other Other
Officers employees Officers employees
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Managerial remuneration 5,833,219 8,507,924 5,611,440 7,643,425
Allowances 785,694 2,123,248 790,288 973,910
Provident fund 307,451 331,662 280,572 267,433
EOEI 14,520 238,180 52,800 116,240
Others 2,387 715,477 5,250 759,107
6,943,271 11,916,491 6,740,350 9,760,815
Number of person 4 13 4 15

37.1 Three (3) officers are provided free use of the Company's cars including fuel and insurance.

37.2 No remuneration paid to the directors of the Modaraba Management Company during the year (2023: Nil}.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
40.1 Financial risk factors

The objective of the Modaraba's financial risk management |5 to minimize volatility and provide maximem return to certficate
holders, The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and gversight of the
Modaraba's risk management framewark and policies.

The Modaraba's overall risk management programme focuses on the ungredictability of financlal markets and seeks to minlmize
potential adverse effects on the financial performance,

The Audit ‘-":url‘lmitmjﬁ of the Management Company oversees how management monitors complignog with the Modaraba's risk
managerent policies and procedures, and réviews the adequacy of the rlsk management framework In retation to the fisks Faced by
the Modaraba.

The Modaraba has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
= Market risk

(a) Credit risk
Credit rick is the rick that the coonterparty o a financal instrument will cause a financial loss for the Modaraba by failing to
discharge an obligation, Tha risk Is generally limited to cutstanding amount against financing facllides and trade debts, The
Modaraba's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the risk management polices and the requirements of the
Modaraba rules and regulations.

The carrying amount of these financial assets represants the maximum cradit exposura at the reporbng data.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupeses
Murabaha Financing 75,462,003 99,799,029
Diminishing musharaka financing - G6H3, 764
Musharaka financing 25,949,054 28,949,054
Loan to employees 595,503 769,500
Long-term deposits 264,500 264,500
Trade debtors 175,324,983 91,400,541
Advances and other receivables 16,472,778 17,431,882
Modaraba financing - 1,822,314
Shart-tarm murabaha financing = 15,622,491
Shart-term deposit 2,707,194 3,950,000
Accrued profit 1,532,576 2,494,612
Receivable against sale of M-Burg = 1,221,554
Short-term investment 21,308,669 20,776,415
Bank balances 47,028,134 46,343,908

366,645,394 331,537,565

Description of collateral held

The Modaraba holds security in the form of mortgage of propertizs, hypothecation and pledoe of goods and demand promissory
notes against modaraba, murataha, diminishing musharaka and musharaka investments,

Concentration of credit risk
The Modaraba manages credit risk and its concentration through diversification of activites to avoid undue concentration of risks

with individuals, greups or specific industry segments. For this purpose, the Madaraba has established exposure fimits for individuals
J groups and industrial sectors,

N o7
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Concentration of credit tisk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or hawe similar
economic features that would cause thelr abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the changes In economic,
political ar other conditions. The Modaraba belleves that It s not exposed to maior concentration of credit risk. The modaraba's
bankers are of good rating. Details of the industrial sector analysis of each financing are as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees e Rupeas O
Chemical, fertilizer and pharmaceutical 1,108,339 1.06%: 14,920,679 9.85%
Fuel and energy 4,840,910 4.63%n 11,E44,055 7.H2%
Food, tobacco and beverages 37,486,036 35.88% 51,778,689 34.18%
Paper and board 26,925,056 25.77% 3,874,738 2.56%
Textile and Garments - 0.00%s - 0.00%
Stesl, engineering and automobiles - 0.00%0 = 0.00%
Transportation and communication 18,267,982 18.44% 291,562 0.19%
Others 14,847,679 14.219% 68,768,827 A5, 40%
104,476,002 100%s 151,479,571 100%
Modaraba's operations are restricted to Pakistan only.
Ageing analysis of financing facilities:
21 2023
I: En amount
l:m'rﬁng amoun = e o e
rﬁ?r"ﬁmji:ﬁ‘wma—lt rovision held | Not impaired || Tmpaired | oo
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupeas Rupees

Mot past due 51,997,373 - 94,525,209 - =
Past due 0 b
o d 27,061,895 - - 53,753,538 - -
Past due 91
fays to 1 year 6,348,629 - - BL2,500 - -
Past dus | to 2
o 16,952,537 -
Past due 2 & o . . = _
vear - 3 years
Past due maore
than 3 years by (2,115,568) 2,115,568 = (2,388,324) 2,388,324
Total __ 102,360,434 {2,115 568) 2,115 568 149,091,247 (2,388,324} 2,388,324

Provision is recognised by the Modaraba as per the requirements given under Modaraba Prudential Regulations.

The credit quality of balances with banks that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (If available) or to histarical information about counterparty default rate:

[ Rating 2024 2023
| Banks |[_Long-term || Short-term Agency | Rupees Rupees
State Bank of Pakistan - . - 34,188 36,957
Habib Bank Umited AAA Al+ PACRA 87,257 422,674
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Adit Al+ PACRA 22,099,192 20,801,592
Faysa Bank Limitad Ah Al+ PR, GBE,059 235,895
Meezan Bank Limited AAA Al+ VIS 24,106,176 24,824,177
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A+ Al VIS 10,545 9,963
Bank Islami Pakistan Limitaed AA- Al PACRA 2,717 1,650
47,028,134 46,342,908

Due to the Company’s long standing business relaticnships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their
strong financal standing, management doss not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the
Modaraba, Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal,
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(b}

c)

(n

AIFEEST

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liguidity risk
arises because of the possibility that the Modaraba could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in ralsing
funds b mest commitmeants associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will ahways have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due, under baoth normal and stressad
conditions, without Incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Modaraba's reputation. The Modaraba manages liquidity
risk by monitoring future cash fiows on a day-to-day basis. The amount disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows,

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

[ Contractual cash flows |

Maturity after

2024 Carrying Maturity upto | one year but || More than three Total

amount ONE yEar upto three VEars

years

Rupees Rupeas Rupees Rupees Rupees
Certificates of musharaka 168,400,000 47,250,000 70,225,000 50,925,000 168,400,000
Creditors, accrued and ather
liabilities 10,289,139 10,283,139 * - 10,289,139
Accruad profit on certificates of
musharaka 3,514,280 3,514,280 - = 3,514,280
Certificate of musharaka - matured 2,800,000 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
Unclaimed profit distribubions 18,729,685 18,729,685 - - 18,729,685
Total 203,733,104 82,583,104 70,225,000 50,925,000 203,733,104

[ Contractual cash flows |
Maturity after

2023 Carrying Maturity upto one year but More than three Total

amount one year upto three years

years

Rupees ih.q:-n iup-lu im Rupees
Certificates of musharaka 167,500,000 25,310,000 57, 660,000 80,530,000 167,500,000
Creditors, accrued and other
liabilities 5,360,661 5,360,661 - = 5,360,661
Accrued profit on certificates of
musharaka 3,613,634 3,613,638 - - 3,613,638
Certificata of musharaka - matured ©,850,000 2,850,000 - - 0,850,000
Unclaimed profit distributions 19,234,855 19,234,855 = - 19,234,855

205,559,154 67,360,154 57 660,000 80,530,000 205,559,154

Market risk

Market risk means that the fair value or future cash Aows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
such as forelgn exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, The objective Is to manage and contral market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Modaraba ks not expased to currency risk, The other price risk and profit
rate risk ascociated with the Modaraba's business activities are stated as under:

Other price risk

Other price risk represents the nsk that the fair value or future cash ficws of a linanclal instrument will fuctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk}, whather those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial mstrument traded in the market,
There is other price risk of changes in the fair value of investment in mutual funds as & result of changes in the levels of net asset
value of units held by the Company. As &t June 30, 2024, had thera been increase | decrease in net assat value by 1%, with all
ather variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year and equity would have been higher / lower by Rupess 0.213 milllon
{Jure 30, 2023: Rupees 0,208 milion) and Rupees 0.151 million {June 30, 2023: Rupees 0.148 millian).
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(i} Profit / mark-up rate risk

Mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market yield. The Modaraba
has adopted appropriate policies to minimise its exposune to this risk. At the reporting date, the profit rate profile of the Modaraba's
significant mark-up bearlng fMinancal instruments was as follows:

2024 2023
Financial assets Rupees Rupees
Fixed rate
Murabaha financing 75,462,003 85, 799,029
Diminishing musharaka financing = 533,764
Short-term murabaha financing = 15,622,491
75 003 115I1ﬂ5i234
Financial assets
Variable rate
Bank balances 37,898,008 34,370,838
37,898,008 34,370,838
Financial liabilities
Variable rate
Certificate of musharaka 168,400,000 167,500,000
On statement of financial position gap [mﬂhsszl !133‘12%162!

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change af 100 basis points In intersst rates at the reporting date would have {decreased) [ increased past tax profit for the year by
the amdunts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The followdng mformation summarizes the
estimated effects af hypathetical increases and decreases in interest rates on cash flows from financial assets ard Habilities that are
subject to profit rate risk,

I 2024 I 2023 |
Increase Decroase Increase Decrease
Rupees Rupees Rupeeas Rupess
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate lnanclal gssets 269,076 (269,076) 244,033 (244,033)
Cash flow sensitivity = variable rate financial liabilites (1,195,640) 1,684,000 {1, 189,250) 1,675,000
Met effect 926,564 1.4 24 {'MEEZ‘].?E 1 43trl9fi?

40.2 Recognized fair value measurements
(a) Financial Assets
Fair value hierarchy

Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial irstruments that are recognized and measured at
fair value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the refiability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Modaraba has classified its fimancial instruments into the following three levels,

Level 1; The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and

avallable for sale securities) s based on quobed market prices at the end of the reporting period. The guoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Modaraba is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The falr value of financial instruments that are nat traded in an active market {'fur example, cver-the-counter derivatives}) is
determined using valuation technigues which maximize the use of cbservable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates, IF all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3: T one or more of the significant inputs: is not based on observable market data, the instrument s included in level 3. This s
the case for uniisted equity securities,

Irvestment of the Modaraba carried at fair value are categorized as follows:
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Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Total
=mmmmmmm e R U RS e
Assets o
Short term investment
Fair value through profit or loss 21,308,669 - - 21,308,669
23 = —
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Total
smmsssmsscce s R UPEEG-sssssamnas
Assets
Short term investment
Fair value through profit or loss 20,776,415 - ox 20.776.415

There were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarcy during the vear.
(b}  Non Financial Assets

The carrying value of all non-financial assets reflected in these financial statements are approximate their fair values. Fair
value is detarmined an the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date,

40.3 Financial instruments by categories [ At amortized cost _ |
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Financial assets as per statement of financial position

Murabaha financing 75,462,003 99,799,029
Diminishing musharaka financing - BB3,764
Musharaka financing 25,949,054 28,949,054
Loan to employees 595,503 769,501
Long-term deposits 264,500 264,500
Trade debtors 175,324,983 91,409,541
Advances and other recsivables 16,472,778 17,431,882
Modaraba financing = 1,822,314
Shaort-term fmurabaha financing - 15,622,491
‘Short-term deposit 2,707,194 3,950,000
Accrued profit 1,532,576 2,494,612
Receivable agalnst sale of Al-Burg - 1,221,554
Cash and bank balances 47,115,806 46,413,056

345,424,397 EIUEBSIIHE

|l.t fair value through profit or loss

Short term investment 21,308,669 20,776,415
[ At amortized cost |
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Cortificates of musharaka 168,400,000 167, 500,000
Craditors, accrued and other liabilities 10,289,139 5,360,661
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable 2,800,000 9,850,000
Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka 3,514,280 3,613,638
Unclaimed profit distributions 18,729,685 19,234,855
2‘03'?33‘1!)4 212'5‘559“154
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Reconciliation to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

As at 30 June 2024

Assgets as per statement of finandial position
Fired Assets

Intangibles

Long term investmeants

Murabaha financing

Dirminishing musharaka fimancing

Musharaka financing

Loan to employvess

Long-term deposits

Stores and spares

Trade debtors

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Sindh sales tax receivable - net

Modaraba financing

Shart-term murabaha financing

Short-term deposit

Accrued profit

Short-term investment

Advance Income tax and prepald levy-net
Cash and bank balances

As at 30 June 2024

Deferred income

Certificates of musharaka

Creditors, accrued and other liabiiities

Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable
Unclaimed profit distributions

_-—-T -

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA

ETEERAY < SAIRSEST - TAARLAY

Total as per
Financial assets "“"':;L"d" m‘;‘;"’
_ Position
Rupees Rupees Rupees
- 13,102,420 13,102,420
= 205,924 205,924
- 9,980 9,980
75,462,003 - 75,462,003
25,949,054 - 25,949,054
595,503 - 595,503
264,500 - 264,500
- 24,102,663 24,102,663
175,324,983 - 175,324,983
16,472,778 739,393 17,212,171
- 5,014,484 5,014,484
2,707,194 = 2,707,194
1,532,576 - 1,532,576
21,308,669 = 21,308,669
- 64,106,437 64,106,437
47,115,806 - 47,115,806
366,733,066 108,181,301 474,914,367
Total as par
Financial Non-financial Statement of
liabilities liabilities Financial
Position
Rupees Rupees Rupees
- 15,101,882 15,101,882
168,400,000 = 168,400,000
10,289,139 5,084,533 16,373,672
3,514,280 = 3,514,280
2,800,000 - 2,800,000
18,729,685 - 18,729,685
203,733,104 21,186,415 224,919,519
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As at 30 June 2023

Assets as per statement of financial position
Fixed Assets

Intangibies

Murabaha financing

Dirminishing musharaka financing

Musharaka financing

Loan to employees

Long-term deposits

Stores and spares

Trade debtors

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Modaraba financing

Sindh sales tax receivable - nat

Short-term murabaha financing

Short-term deposit

Accrued profit

Short term investment

Advance income tax and prepaid lewvy-net
Cash and bank balances

Receivable against sale of Al-Burg

As at 30 June 2023

Deferred Income

Certificates of musharaka

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Accrued profit on cerificates of musharaka
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable
Unclaimed profit distributions

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA

PRRANT = BHWREAT, » FRNTET

Total as per
Financisl ssets Nerfiancil - Satement of
Pocsition
Rupees Rupees Rupees
- 12,071,509 12,071,509
. 294,176 294,176
89,799,029 = 99,799,029
683,764 = 683,764
28,949,054 - 28,949,054
769,501 = 769,501
264,500 - 264,500
. 37,779,122 37,779,122
91,409,541 - 91,409,541
17,431,882 19,008,738 36,440,620
1,822 314 - 1,822,314
= 1,326,544 1,326,544
15,622 491 = 15,622,491
3,950,000 . 3,950,000
2,494,612 = 2,494,612
20,776,415 & 20,775,415
- 47,580,629 47,580,629
46,413,056 - 46,413,056
1,221,554 - 1,221,554
331,607,713 118,060,718 449,668,431
Total as per
Financial Non-financial Statement of
liabilities liabilities Financial
Position
Rupees Rupees Rupees
- 18,919,498 18,919,498
167,500,000 = 167,500,000
5,360,661 3,737,408 9,008,069
3,613,638 - 3,513,638
9,850,000 - 9,850,000
19,234,855 = 19,234,855
205,559,154 27,656,906 228,216,060
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41. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

41.1 The following information is based on un-audited financial information of the Staff Provident Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023,

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Size of the funds - Total assets 10,163,135 8,140,662
Cost of investments Iﬁﬁnﬂ 1,400,000
Fair value of investments out of Provident Fund 1,400,000 1,400,000
Percentage of investments made 14% 17%
41.2 Details of fair value of investments:
Bank balances 5,236,949 4,202,661
Investment in sharia compliant certificate of musharaka 1,400,000 1,400,000
6,636,949 5,602,661
42. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The number of employees during the year are as follows:
Number of employess - permanent 16 17
Average number of employess - permanent 16 17
Mumber of employees - contractual 1 2
Average number of employees - contractual i 2

43. GENERAL

43.1 No significant rearrangements | reclassification have been made except for reclassification as disclosed in note 2,18 to
these financial statements,

44, DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements are approved and authorised for issue on by the Board of Directors
of the Modaraba Management Company.
For Paramount Investments Limited
(Management Company)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the certificate holders of First Paramount Modaraba
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of First Paramount Modaraba and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated staberment of financial position as at 30 June
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consclidated statement of changes In equity, the corsolidated cash flow statement far the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated finandal statements, including material accounting poiicy
infarmation and other explanatory information.

In our opinfen, the consolidated financial statements cive a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
pesition of the Group as at 30 June 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolicated
cash flows for the year than ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan,

Basis for Opinion

We concucted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ESAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors” Respongibitities
for the Audit of the consolidated Minencial stetements section of our report. We are Independent of the
Group and Paramount Investmenis Limited (the Group Maragement Company) in accordance with the
International Cthics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Profossional Accountants as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (Lhe Code) and we have Nulfillzd cur other
ethical responsicilities in accordance with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to notz 22,1 to the consoldisted financial statements, which states that the Group is
ron-compliant with the credit rating and minimum equily reguirements as stpulated n Modaraba
Regulations, 2023, As more fully disciosad in the sfore-szid note, the management understands that the
compiiance petiod is extended Bl 14 August 2625 Our opinion s not madified In respact of this matter,

Key Audit Matters

key audit matters are those mattars that, o cur professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated finandial statemeants of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of ouw audit of the consoiidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our epinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these mattars,

Following are Lhe Key audit matkars:

A mmnm_r ot

Nexia

Intarrations
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5.No

Key Audit Matiers

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1I

Cash and Bank Balance and Investments

As at 30 June 2024 the Group's total
investments amounts to Rupees 21,302 million
as disclosed in note 17 and cash and bank
bakances amounts to Rupees 47124 milllon as
disdosed in note 18 of the consolidatag
financial statements representing 14.4% of
ihe total assets of the Group.

The proper valuation of cash and bank

balances and investments for the Group were |
considered as a high-risk area and therefore, |

we consider this as a Key Audit Matter (KAM}).

We perfarmed the follawing audit procedures:

Obtaired an  understanding of design
effectiveness of the key conbrols on the
cash and bank balances and investments.

Obtained independent confirmations  for
verifying the existence of the bank balances
as at 30 June 2024 and recondled il with
the books and records of the Modaraba,

Re-parformed valuation to assess that the
investments are carried as per the valuation
methodology  specified in the accounting |
policies,

Checked presentation and dizclosure as per
apolicable firancial reporting framework.

Income from Murahaba Finznce

"+

;r
i
i

1

Group earns income from the murababa
financing which [s its substantial income
source {Refer note 21.1 to the consolidated
financial statements),

Durlng the year, the Group has recognized
income of Rupees 14.066 million.

We identified income from the murabaha
firancing as a key audit matter a5 it is one of
the key performance indicators of the
Modaraba among Islamic

tne murabaha financing transactions may not
be accurately recorded, recngnized In the
approprizt= period, and not properly disclosed

in the consolidated financial siatements.

Financing and |

because of the potential risk that income from |

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter
included the following:

Dbtained an understanding, including the
design and implementation of internai
cantrols over recording and processing of |
murabaha ncome.

Assessed  the appropristencss  of  the
Mndaraba’s accounting pollcy for recording
of Incame and in line with the requirements
of applicabile law, accounting and reparting
standards;

Matched customer conbracts  with  the |
ineome end  repayment  scheduls,
performed recalculation on sample basis to
ensure that income s  appropriately
recorded and also evaluated that these
coniracts wers appropriately dassified and
recorded in the appropriate accounting

pericd;
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« On sample basls, traced the instaiments
- received from the underlying records issued
! lu contract holders and appled substantive
analytical procedures to determine any
variadons,

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The management of the Group is responsible for the cther Information. The other information comprises
the Information inciuded in the Group's annual report, but dees net include the consolidated and
unconsolidated financlal statements of the Modaraba and ouwr auditor's reports thereon,

Our opinien on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do pot
exprass any form of assurance conclusion therecn.

In connection witk our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our respansibility is to read the other
information and, in doing $o, consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtzined In the audit or ctherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have ngthing Lo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management of the Group is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financlal statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and the requirements of Modaraba Compenies and Modaraba (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1950
(X1 of 1280) and Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such interpal control as management
determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
maberial misstztement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepaning the consofidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to cantinue as a going concarn, disclosing, as applicable, mattars related to going concem and using
the going concern basis of accounting unkess management aither intends to liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1 do so.

Soard of directors of the Group Management Company are respansible for oversesing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 3
whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraugd or error, and to issue an awditor's report
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that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantas that an
audit conducted In accordance with ISAS as applicabie in Pakistan will always detect 2 materal
misstalemant when it exists. Misstatoments can arise from fraud or error and are consklered matenial if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of thess consolidated financial statements.

As parl of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable In Pakistan, we exertise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepdcism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material missiatemant of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respensive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our cpinion. The risk
of nat detecting a materal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentaticns, o e
overmide of internal contral.

« Obkain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are aporopriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an oninioh on the.
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control,

» Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the approoriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accuunting
‘and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
oF conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a geirg concerm.
If we conclude that a materal uncertalnty xists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disciosurss in the censolidated financeal statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinien. Our conclusicns are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease o continue as a golng concern,

+ Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure ang content of the consolidated financlal statements,
incleding the disclosures, and whether the consclidated finandal statements represent the
underlying transactions and avants in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We commuricate with the beard of directors of the Group Management Company regarding, amang other
matzers, Lhe planned scope and iming of the audit and significant audit findings, inclucing ary significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify dusing cur audit.

We also provide the board of directors of the Greup Management Comnpany with 2 statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be theught to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.,

From (ke matters communicated with the boarg of directors of the Group Management Company, we

datermine those matters that were of most significance in the audic of the consolidated financial statemerts
of the current period and are therafore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's

&
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report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
clrcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
cansequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outwelgh the public interest benefits of such

communication,
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Junaid Ashraf.

i

Ve

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

KARACHI

DATE: 04 OCTOBER 2024
UDIN: AR202410045DCM7pedzc
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ASSETS

NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment
Intangibles

Murabaha financing

Dirnimishing musharaka financing
Musharaka financing

Loan to employess

Long-term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
Stock in frads
Trade detitors

FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
CONMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

Note

DD s

1o

Advances, prapayments and other receivablas 11

Modaraba financing

Shart-term murabaha financing
Current partion of Ron-current assets
Short-tarm deposit

Accrued profit

Sindh sales taw recelvable - net

Advance ncome tax and prepaid levy-net

Recaivable against sale of Al-Burg
Short term imvestment
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

13
14

CERTIFICATE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised certilicate capital

25,000,000 certificates of Rupees 10/- each
Isswed, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital 19

Capital reserves
REvirie reser s

Equity attributable to certificate holders of the holding comparry

Man-contraliing Intersst
Total equity

LIABILITIES
HWON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income

Certificates of musharaka

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors, accrued and other liabifities:
Current partion of defarred income

Current partion of certificates of musharaka n
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payabie 24

Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka

Lincialmed profit distribations

TOTAL LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 25

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 01 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

EHIEF FPIMAMCLAL OFFICER

For Paramount Investments Limited
{Group Management Company)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

FLOELE R
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FIRST PARANMOUNT
0 A
ARLREAY « BV RRRT = BAREAT
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees.
13,102,420 12,071,509
205,924 284,176
31,982,963 41,453,148
- 00,827
12,000,000 12,000,000
385,503 577,501
264,500 264,500
57,941,310 67,061,661
24,102,663 37,773,122
175,324,983 91,409,541
17,212,171 36,440,620
- 1,822,314
- 15,622,491
57,638,094 75,769,372
2,707,194 3,950,000
1,532,576 2,499,612
5,914,484 1,326,544
64,106,437 47,500,629
d 1,221,554
21,308,669 20,776,415
416,970,904
474,912, 214 449,668,431
___ 250,000,000 _ 250,000,000
137,884,193 137,884,103
89,550,505 61,175,710
21,392,468 22,382 468
249,827,166 221,352,371
{316) =
249,826,850 221,452,371
7,962,634 8,520,320
121,150,000 138,190,000
139,112,634 146,710,320
16,539,517 9,008,069
7,139,248 10,399,178
47,250,000 29,310,000
2,800,000 5,850,000
3,514,280 3,613,638
18,729,685 19,734,855
95,972,730 81,505,740
115,085,364 228,216,060
—ANZNY, 366833
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

FIRST PARAMOUNT
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Incomne from trading operations 27 B8,983,786 37,791,060
Income fram murabaha financing 21,1 14,065,787 21,365,050
Income from diminishing musharaka financing 108,939 275,112
Income from musharaka financing 1,993,135 3,277,208
105,151,647 62,708,430
Administration and operating expenses 28 {45,702,749) {36,161,337)
{Provision) / reversal for doubtful recoveries - net (155,660) 8,723
Other income 29 8,195,102 5,201,589
67,488,340 31,757,405
Financial charges 30 {21,557,034) (18,391,565)
45,931,306 13,365,840
Modaraba Company's management fee 31 (4,609,932) {1,336,584)
41,321,374 12,020,256
Sindh workers' welfare fund (829,788) (240,585)
Profit before income tax and levy 40,491,586 11,788,671
Levy 32 (621,877) (137,014)
Profit before income tax 39,869,709 11,651,657
Income tax expense 33 {11,495,250) {5,111,532)
Profit for the year 28,374,459 6,540,125
Share of profit attributable to ;
Certificate holders of the Modaraba 28,374,795 =
Non-controlling interest (336) =
28,374,459 -
Earnings per certificate 34 2.058 0.474

The annexed notes from 01 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Paramount Investments Limited
{Group Management Company)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Profit after income tax 39,869,709 11,651,657
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account - -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss account - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 39,869,709 11,651 657
The annexed notes from 01 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements,

For Paramount Investments Limited
(Group Management Company)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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COMSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Income bax and kevy

Adjusiments for non-cash items:
LCepreciation and amaortization

Lesas f fgain} on disposal of fixed essets

Provwision for Sindn Workers' Welfang Fund
Financlal charges

Prowision [ (reversal) for doubtful recoveries - net
Bad debis written off

Depasit set-off aoainst iability

Opperaling profit belore working capdal changes

{Increase) / decroase in current assats
Murabaha financisg - net

Dirnlribshing Musharaks finsncing - net
Musharaka financing - net

Mudaratia financing - net

Lioarts 10 employeos

Long-term deposits

Stores and spares

Trads debtors

Advances, prepayments and other recehvables
Shortsterm deposit

Receivable fram Al-burg associates

Short Term Investrment

Accrued profit

{Decrease) [ increase in curnent liabilities

Creditors, accrued and other Habilites

Deferred Income

Net cash generated from operations

Financial charges paid

Tncomme tax pndd lovy paid-ned

Het cash genarated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Furchase of property-and equipment

Sale procesd on disposals of fixed assels

Addition [ delotion in capsal work-in progress
Met cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cartificate of Musharaia - (ssuance

Crrtificate of Musharsia - redemptiong

Pald against maturad certificate of musharaka

Predit paid o certificales of Musharake {COM) holdar

Share capial ssund by subsidiary company to nan-controdling interest
Profit distributed to certificate holders

Net cazh used in financing activities

Met increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cazh and cash squivalanks at Baeginning of e pear

Cash and cash equivalents at ond of the yoar

The annexed notes from 01 to 43 form an inbegral part of these financial statemants.

For Paramount Investments Limited
{Groun Menagement Comaany)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF CMOCUTIVE OFFICER
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2024 2023
MNola Rupaas Rupeaasg
40,491,586 11,788,671
2,369,720 2,564,015
{367,952) 21,669
839,788 240,585
k) 21,557,034 18,391,565
155,660 {8,723)
3,730,868 1,633,218
- 3,000
28,275,118 22,904,533
68,766,704 34,601,204
39,803,857 40,306,175
683,764 2,782,842
3,000,000 11,050,546
1,822,314 101,068
173,998 235,99%
13,676,459 {2,098 804)
{87,646,310) (23,782,968)
19,228,449 {9,211,607)
1,242,806 {3,950,000)
1,221,554 5,092,000
(532,254) {20,776,415)
952,036 1,697,976
6,611,660 4,565,604
(3,817,616) {5,667,551)
65,167,421 0,036,472
(52,977) (56,928)
(23,230,875) (11,707,181}
31,913,569 [2.727,637)
4. (3,634,427) {2,717.653)
620,000 59,993
(2,944,427) {2,B57,660)
2 26,375,000 23,275,000
{25, 475,000) {33,275,000)
{7,050,000) -
{21,603,415) {16,919,269)
20 -
(505,170) (1,900,614
(28,358 565) 128,819,883)
710,577 {34,205,180)
46,413,056 BO.618,236
ik 47,123,633 46,413,056
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOT THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Group consist of First Paramount Modaraba and Its subsidiaries namely, Paramount Compliance
Private Limited and Complytech Global Limited.

1.1 First Paramount Modaraba

The First Paramount Modaraba (the Modaraba) is a multipurpose, perpetual and multidimensional
Modaraba floated under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 and the rules framed there under and is managed by Paramount Investments Limited (the Group
Management Company), a company incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) on June 26, 1994, The Modaraba is listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited.

The registered office is situated at Suit No. 107- 108, First Floor, P.E.C.H.S. Community Office Complex,
Block 2, Shahrah-e-Quaideen, Karachi, in the province of Sindh.

The Modaraba principal activities include deployment of funds on murabaha, modaraba and musharaka
arrangements and its in-house ventures are:

{a} Electrical maintenance and troubleshooting services' under the name of "FPM Sclutions";
{b) Chemical business under the name of "FPM Petro Services”;

Paramount Compliance Private Limited

The Paramount Compliance Private Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on August 24, 2023 as a
private limited company under the Companies Act,2017. The registered office is situated at Suit No.
107- 108, First Floor, P.E.C.H.S. Community Office Complex, Block 2, Shahrah-e-Quaideen, Karachi, in
the province of Sindh. The principal activity of the Paramount Compliance Private Limited is provision of
Anti Money Laundering screening services and solutions. Paramount Compliance Private Limited is yet to
commence commercial operations. Non-controlling interest in the Paramount Compliance Private Limited
— subsidiary company is 0.02% (2023: Nil).

Complytech Global Limited

The Complytech Global Limited is wholly owned subsidiary of Paramount Compliance Private Limited and
was incorporated in United Kingdom on January 15, 2024 as a private limited company under the
Companies Act, 2006. The registered office is situated at Unit 19 1-13 Adler Street, London, England, E1
1E6G. Non-controlling interest in the Complytech Global Limited — subsidiary company is 0.02% (2023:
Mil. '

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial

statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented,
unless otherwise stated:

&
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2.1  Basis of preparation

The corresponding figures given in these consolidated financial statements are not comparable as the
subsidiaries were incorporated during the year and consolidated for the first time as at 30 June 2024,

a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with approved
‘accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- The requirements of the Modaraba Companles and Modaraba (Floatation and Contral) Ordinance,
1980, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulation 2021 and directives
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

In case where requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) differ, the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba Rules, 1981, the Modaraba Regulation, 2021 and directives Issued by SECP shall prevall,

b) Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments in accordance with the reguirements of IFRS

9 ‘Financial Instrument’, wherever applicable.

Permissible Islamic financial products including murabaha, musharaka and modaraba have been used by
the Group, the accounting and presentation of the same are in line with the substance of the
transactions and their accounting is limited to the extent of actual amount of facility utilized and
mutually agreed profit thereon. Accordingly, purchases, sales and musharaka profits | reserves are not
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except for
cash flow statement.

c) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's
functional currency. All financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been rounded to the
nearast rupees, except otherwise stated.

d) Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements In conformity with the approved accounting
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, It also requires the management to
exercise |ts judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. Estimates and
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
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expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas
where varlous assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's consolidated financial
statements or where judgments were exerclsed In application of accounting policies are as follows:

a) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairment

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful fives and pattern of flow of economic benefits
are based on the analysis of the management of the Group. Further, the Group reviews the value
of assets for possible impairment on an annual basls. Any change in the estimates in the Future
might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

ii} Stock in trade

Stock in trade write-down Is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience
and selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market
condltions. A review is made on each reporting date on Stock in trade for excess inventorles,
obsolescence and declines in net realisable value and an allowance is recorded against the Stock in
trade balances for any such declines.

iii) Imcome tax and levy

In making the estimates for incorme tax and levy currently payable by the Group, the management
takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain
issues in the past.

iv) Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and
judgment. 1t is based on the lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days owverdue, and
makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each group. These
assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

v) Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,
regulations, public expectaticns, technology, prices and cenditions, and can take place many years
in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized,
provision is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the provision was originally
recognised as part of cost of an asset.

vi) Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance
obligation of the Group is considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as
this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and
therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

e) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year
and are relevant to the Group

Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2023;

s |
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» Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Consolidated financial
statements’ and IFRS Practice Statement 2 'Making Materiality Judgement’).

= Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS
12 'Income taxes").

» Change in definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors’).

»  Amendments to TAS 12 'Income Taxes' - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules,

The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year
but not relevant to the Group

There are amendments to published approved standards that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after July 01, 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these
consolidated financial statements.

a) Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective but relevant to the Group

Following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for
the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2024 or later periods:

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current {Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Consolidated
financial statements’) effective for the annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2024. These
amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current.
The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the
assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments
retrospectively in accordance with IAS B ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’,

On October 31, 2022, the 1ASBE ssued '"Nan-current Liabllities with Covenants (Amendments to 1AS 1) to
clarify how conditions with which an entity must comply within twelve months after the reporting period
affect the classification of a liability. The amendments are effective for reporting periods beainning on or
after January 01, 2024,

On May 25, 2023, the IASBE issued 'Suppliers Finance Arrangements (Amendments to [AS 7and IFRS 7)
to add disclesure requirements, and 'signposts’ within existing disclosure requirements, that ask entities
to provide gualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangement. The
amendments are effective for reporting period beginning on or after January 01, 2024,

Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Consclidated financial statements’ and 1AS 28 ‘Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures' (deferred indefinitely) to darify the treatment of the sale or contribution
of assats from an investor to Its assoclates or joint venture, as follows: require full recognition in the
investor's consolidated financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or contribution of
assets that constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 "Business Combinations’); require the partial
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recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not constitute a business, i.e. a gain or loss is
recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.
These reguirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. whether the sale or
contribution of assels occur by an investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets
{resulting in loss of control of the subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assels themselves.

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Forelgn Exchange Rates’).
The amendments contain guidance to specify when a currency is exchangeable and how to determine
the exchange rate when it is not. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 01, 2025.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosure in Consolidated financial statements’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 01 January 2027) with a focus on updates to the statement of profit and loss. The
objective of IFRS 18 is to set out requirements for the presentation and disclosure of information in
general purpose consolidated financlal statements to help ensure they provide relevant information that
faithfully represents an entity’s assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. The key new concepts
introduced in IFRS 18 relate to: the structure of the statermnent of profit and loss; required disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements for certain profit and loss performance measures that are reported
outside an entity’s consolidated financial statements (that is, management-defined performance
measures); and enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary
consolidated financial statements and notes in general, IFRS 18 will replace 1AS 1; many of the other
existing principles in 1AS 1 are retained, with limited changes. IFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or
measurement of items in the consolidated financial statements, but it might change what an entity
reports as its 'operating profit and loss'.

The above standards and amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the
censolidated financial statements.

h) Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and
not considered relevant to the Group

There are other standards and amendments to approved published standards that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not
have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements and are therefore not
detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Consolidation of subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control, The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The assets and liabilities of Subsidiary Companies have been consalidated on a line by line basls and
carrying value of investments held by the Modaraba is eliminated against the Modaraba’s share in paid
up capital of the Subsidiary Companies.

Intragroup balances and transactions have been eliminated.
Mon-controlling interest are that part of net results of the operations and of net assets of Subsidiary

Companies attributable to interest which are not owned by the Modaraba. Non-controlling interest are
presented as separate item in the consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 Property and equipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairments, If any, Cost of property and
equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erectlon / construction perfod of
qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized while normal replacements, repairs and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the reducing balance method at the rates
mentioned in note (4). Depreciation on additions and disposals during the year is charged from the date
asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged from the date asset is disposed. When parts
of an item of asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate item in property and
equipment. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, If
required.

An item of property and eguipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal of property and equipment are
determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are taken to the consolidated
statement of profit and loss account currently.

2.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets (comprising of computer softwares) are stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized under the reducing balance method at
the rate of thirty percent per annum. '

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

2.5 Loans to employees

Loans to employees are granted by Modaraba for purchasing of vehicles or for other purposes, as
approved by the management on a case to case basis. Loans granted are initially recorded at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are stated at amortized cost,

2.6 Murabaha financing

Murabaha transactions are reflected as receivable at the inveoiced amount, Actual sale and purchase are
not reflected as the goods are purchased by the customer as agent of the Modaraba and all documents
relating to purchase are in customer name. However the profit on that sale revenue not due for
payment is deferred by recording a credit to "Deferred Murabaha Income” account.

2.7 Modaraba financing

Modaraba is a kind of parinership where one partner gives money to another for investing it in a
commercial enterprise. The investment comes from the first partner who is called “rabb-ul-mal” (hara
FPM), while the management and work is an exclusive responsibility of the other, who is called
"mudarib” and the profits generated are shared in a predetermined ratio. Modaraba receivable are
reflected at principal amount.

N 00—
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2.8 Musharaka financing

Musharaka Is an agreement between two or mare parties to combine their assets, labour or liabilities for
the purpose of making profit. Modaraba is dealing in the fallowing forms of Musharaka.

a) Diminishing musharaka

In diminishing musharaka based financing, the Group enters into a Musharaka based on Shirkat-ul-
mulk {Jeoint arrangement) for financing an agreed share of fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or
machinery) with its customers and enters into yearic profit payments agreement for the utilization of
the Modaraba's Musharaka share by the customer. The customer with each rental payments also
purchases Modaraba's Musharaka share by paying additional amount and therefore becomes the
sole owner of the subject asset at the maturity of the diminishing musharaka.

b) Musharaka financing

Group enters into financing with customers based on Shirkat-ul-agd (contractual partnership) in
customers' operating business. Under this mechanism, the customer can withdraw and return funds
to the Group subject to his running musharaka financing limit during the musharaka year, The
customer pays the provisional profit which is subject to final settiement based on the actual resuits
of the business [ transaction,

2.9 IFRS 9 "Financial instruments”

Investments and other financial assets
a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortized cost
The classification depends an the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of
profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investmenls in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acouisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interast,
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Debt instruments

Subseguent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business medel for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized directly in statement of profit and
loss and presented in other income / (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measurad at FAYVTOCT, Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses),
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and
loss and recognized in other income / (other expenses). Interest income from these financial
assets s included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other income / (other expenses) and impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCT are measured at PVTPL. A gain
or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in the
statement of prefit and loss and presented net within other income / (other expenses) in the
period In which it arises,

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments quoted in
an active market, the fair value corresponds to a market price (level 1). For financial instruments that
are not guoted in an active market, the fair value is determined using valuation technigues including
reference to recent arm's length market transactions or transactions invelving financial instruments
which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash flow analysis including, to the greatest
possible extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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Fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
in other income / (other expenses) in the statement of profit and loss as applicable.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in statement of profit and loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
de-recognition is also included in statement of profit and loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk,

The Group applies the TFRS 9 simplified approach for measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all financial assets, except in the case of calculation of
impairment provision on financial assets where the reguirements of the Prudential Regulations for
Modaraba applies, it is recognized as higher of (on customer basis):

= the provision required under the Modaraba Regulations, 2021; and
= the provision required under IFRS 9 using the expected credit loss (ECL) model.

Loss allowance on advances and bank balances is measured at 12 months expected credit losses.
Since these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.
The Group is also not expecting a material impact on loan to employees and deposits.

ii) De-recognition
a) Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assel expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such
derecognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognized as a
separate asset or liability.
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b) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires,

iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with banks in current and deposit accounts and
investments with short term maturity,

2.11 Stock in trade

Stock in trade is valued at lower of net realizable value or cost, Cost of items of stores and spares is
determined as invoice value plus other charges accrued thereon to the balance sheet date. Provision is
made annually in the consolidated financial statements for slow moving and obsolete items if required.

Met realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the product in the ordinary
course of business less cost of completion and estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the
sale,

2.12 Trade debtors and other receivables

Trade debtors and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for
doubtful receivables based on review of outstanding amounts as per expected credit losses model (ECL)
as required by IFRS 9 as at year end date.

2.13 Joint Operations (Musharaka arrangements)

The Group has certain contractual arrangements with other participants to engage in joint achvities,
where all significant operating and financial policies are predetermined by the participants, such that the
Musharik has no significant independence lo pursue its own strategies.

The consclidated financial statements of the Group include its prorata share of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses in joint operation and are accounted for on the basis of profit statements.

2.14 Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents profit set aside to comply with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas
issued by the SECP vide 5.R.0. 284(1)/2021 dated March 05, 2021. These Regulations require Maodaraba
which is not compliant with minimum equity requirements as provided in the regulations, shall create
reserve fund to which shall credit an amount equivalent to 100% of of its annual after-tax profit till such
time the minimum equity requirements are complied with. During the year, the Group transferred 100%
of its after tax profit.
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2.15 Certificates of musharaka

Certificates of musharaka are recognized initially at cost, less attributable transaction costs. Subseguent
to Inltial recognition, these are stated at amortized cost,

Profit on these arrangements is recognized as expense In the year in which they are incurred and is
accounted for on the basis of projected profit. The effect of adjustments, if any, between actual rate
and projected rate of profit is accounted for at the end of each quarter after determination of actual

profit.
2.16 Creditors and other liabilities

Creditors and other liabilitles are recognized Initlally at falr value plus directly attributable cost, If any,
and subsequently measured at amortized cost,

2.17 Impairment

a) Non financial assets

The Group assesses ab each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets may be
impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess
whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the
respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to thelr recoverable amounts and the
resulting impairment loss Is recognized in statement of profit and loss. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
lower of revised recoverable amount or initial cost of asset less accumulated depreciation (if any) to
date, Reversal of impairment loss |s recognized as income.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue Is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a
customer, the Group follows the below steps.

Step 1; Identify the contract with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation

For each sale transaction, purchase order forms a contract between the Group and a customer and
the goods to be delivered under that contract are the Group's identified performance obligation, the
contract contains determined and allocated transaction price, The Group satisfies a performance
obligation on delivery of goods to the customer and recognises the revenue.

- Profit / return on deposits / investments is recognized using tentative profit rates.

- Income from Murabaha is accounted for on finalization of Murabaha transaction. However, profit
on that portion of revenue not due for payment (deferred murabaha income)} is deferred and
recognized an time proportionate basis.

Musharaka management fee is recognized when related services are provided.
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- Rental income from generators is recognized on time proportionate basis,
- Profit on diminishing musharaka financing is recognized using tentative profit rates.

Profit on musharaka financing is recognized on declaration of profit by musharaka partners on
accrual basis.

- Realized capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the profit and loss
account on the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.
2.18 Income tax expense and levy
Current

Provision for current tax and levy is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance
with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing
tax rates. Final taxes levied under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and any excess over the amount
designated as provision for current tax are charged as levy in statement of profit and loss. The charge
for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax and levy
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

During the year the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) have withdrawn the Technical
Release 27 "]AS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)" and issued guidance —"IAS 12 Application Guidance
on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes". The said guidance requires certain amounts of tax
paid under minimum tax (which is not adjustable against future income tax liability) and final tax
regimes to be shown separately as a levy instead of showing it in current tax.

Previgusly, component representing levy was included in provision for current tax and was not
separately charged in consolidated statement of profit and loss. This change in accounting policy has
been applied retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard
(IAS 8) = "Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. There has been no effect on
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and earning
per certificate as a result of this change., The change resulted in following reclassification of

corresponding figures:
30 JUNE 2024 30 JUNE 2023
After
After Had there
incorporating
Had there hT n Impact of mﬁml}rﬂhg cl;eui n-t:l 1 £ of Hects of
He change in policy = o e change in policy| change in
accounting policy in accounting accounting actounting
policy policy
policy
Amount in Rupees
Effect on consolidated statemeant of profit and loss
Profe hefore Income tax 40,491,586 (621,877) 39,869,709 11,788,671 {137,0041)  11,651.857
Lerwy - firiod b - (621,877) (621,877)| - {137,014) [137,014)
Income tax expense 217,027 620877 | (11,495,250)) (5,248 ,54) 13704 | (5.111,5%2)
Effect on consocldated statement of finandal position
Advance ncome tax 64,106,437 - 64,106,437 | 47,580,629 - ar,s80,620
Precpad favy - - -
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Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences
between the carrying amaount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the tax base
used in computation of the taxable profit.

A deferred tax asset Is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited In statement of the profit and loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Levy

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount
paid / payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not
adjustable against Tuture income tax liability is classified as levy in the statement of profit and loss as
these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/IAS 37,

2.19 Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group's other components. All operating segments' operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Management Modaraba's Chief Executive Officer and Board of Directors to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial Information Is avallable, In review and evaluation performance process, the business Is
considered as a single operating segment and the Group's business is evaluated on an overall basis
other than musharaka arrangement with joint venture partner which is monitored separately.

Segment results that are reported for review and performance evaluation include items directy
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly corporate assets, administrative expenses, and income tax assets and liabilities,

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the vear to acquire Property and
equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill,

3. SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Other than material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below for ease of user's understanding of these consolidated financial
statements. These polices have been applied consistently for all periods presented, unless otherwise
stated,

3.1 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees at rates of exchange on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at
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the rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are charged to profit and
loss account currently.

3.2 Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan
The Group operates approved funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Group and the employees at the rate of 8.33%
percent per annum of the basic salary. '
b) Compensated absences

The Group accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the year in
which they are earned.

3.3 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

3.4 Profit distributions and appropriations

Profit distributions are recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the year in
which these are approved. Transfers to statutory reserve and the mandatory appropriations as may be
required by law are recognized in the year to which these relate.

3.5 Earnings per certificate (EPC)

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per certificate (EPC) data for its certificate, Basic EPC is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to certificate holders of the Group by the weighted
average number of certificates outstanding during the year. Diluted EPC is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to certificate holders and the weighted average number of certificates
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential certificates.
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

FIRST PARANMOUNT
MODARABA
_ 2024 2023
INTANGIBLES - Computer Software MNote Rupees Rupees
As at 01 July
Cost 2,076,738 2,076,738
Accumulated amortization {2,682,562) (2,556,487)
Net book value 294,176 420,251
Year ended 30 June
Opening net book value 294,176 420,351
Amartization charge for the year (88,252) {126,075}
Net book value 205,924 294,176
As at 30 June
Cost 2,076,738 2,976,738
Aceurnulated amartization (2,770,814) (2,682 562)
Net book value 205,924 29'-1‘1?5
Rate of amortization (%) 30 20
MURABAHA FINANCING - SECURED
Considered good 75,462,003 99,799,029
Considered doubtful 2,115,568 #,388,324
77,577,571 102,187,353
Less: Provision for doubtful recoveries 6.1 (2,115,568) (2,388,324)
75,462,003 09,799,029
Less: Current portien of murabaha financing (43,479,040) (58,345 881}
31,982,963 41,453,148
Movement in provision for doubtful recoveries
Balance as at 01 July 2,388,324 2,506,985
Charge for the year 367,425 -
Reversal made during the year (640,181) (118,661)
(272,756) (118,661)
Balance as at 30 June 6.4 2,115,568 2,388,324

The Group has sold goods under Murabaha arrangerents whereby payment |s deferred aleng with specified profit marngin,
Murabaha sale is receivable in instaliments. These arrangements are secured by way of hypothecation [ pledge of stocks,
mortgage of properties, demand promissory notes, charge on assets and personal guarantees. The combined forced sales
value (FSV) of the underlying assets as security amounts to Rupees 373,947 million {2023: Rupees 505.531 millian) In

aggregats.

These facilities have various maturity dates up to 16 May 2027, Effective profit rate on these arrangements ranges from 18%

to 26% (2023: 18% to 24%).

As fully explained in note 2.9 the Group also applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to evaluate the provisioning impact,
Consequently,it is recognized as higher of the provision required under the Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and thia provision

required under IFRS 9 using the expeacted credit loss (ECL) model.
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6.5 Contractual instaliments receivable on Murabaha financing facilities:

6.6

?I

7.1

7.2

[ poncpal || promt || vow ]
2024 Rupees Rupees Rupees
Overdue 2,115,568 - 2,115,568
Due within one year 36,339,792 7,139,248 43,479,040
Due after one year but within five years 22,584,921 9,398,042 31,982,963
Due after five years = - -
61,040,281 16,537,290 77,577,571
Principal ||  profit ||  Tota |
2023 Rupees Rupees Rupees
Ohverdiue 2,388,324 = 2,388,324
Due within one year 48,555,319 8,386,562 58,345,881
Due after one year but within five years 30,153,906 11,299,242 41,453,148
Due after five years - = =
H1,501,549 20,685,804 102,187,353

The above except for overdue balance represents installments receivable by the Group In future years in respect of Murabaha
financing facilities given under long-term arrangements,

2024 2023
DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA FINANCING- SECURED Note Rupees Rupees
Considered good - 683,764

Less: Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing

- (282,937)
i '
This represents financing provided to individual under diminishing musharaka arrangement for purchase of building. The

effective profit rate on this arrangement is ; Nil {2023; 22.8%) per annum. The finandng is secured by mortgage of
properties of the borrower. The combined forced sales value (FSV) of the underlying assets as security 1s ; Wil (2023: Rupees

E.856 millinnt n Acarenate.

Contractual rentals receivable on Diminishing Musharaka financing facilities are as follows:

Due within one year
Due after one year but within five years

282,937
400,827

683,764
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2024 2023
B. MUSHARAKA FINANCING - SECURED Mote Rupees Rupees
Musharaka agreements for:
Considered good:
Food products B 12,000,000 12,000,000
Microsoft power project B.2 - 2,500,000
12,000,000 14,500,000
Considered doubtful:
Books printing - 11 8.3 13,949,054 14,449,054
Less:Provision for doubtiul recoveries 8.5 - -
25,949,054 28,949,054
Less: Current portion of musharaka financing {13,949,054) {16,949,054)
12,000,000 12,000,000

8.1 The Group has entered Into a Musharaka arrangement with Musharaka partner for distribution of food products like milk,
blscuits etc, The Group's share of Investment is 30% of the total financing required by Musharaka partner and profit on
investment is shared In the ratio of 35:65 (2023: 35:65) between the Group and Musharaka parmer respectively. This
financing is secured by way of mortgage of property.

8.2 Dwring the prior year, the Group entered into a Musharaka arrangement amounting to Rupees 2.5 million for a Microsoft
SharePoint project as the Musharaka partmer. This arrangement was fulfilled in the prior year, and in the current year,
the Group has fully recovered the financing from the Musharaka partner,

B3 During the preceding years, the Group signed a Musharaka arrangement amounting to Rupees 20 million for printing of
272,766 books with a Musharaka partner. The profit en the investment s shared In the ratio of §4.09:35.91 (2023
64.00:35,91) bebween Group and the Musharaka partner respectively. The financing is secured by way of mortgage of
immoveable property. This arrangement was fulfilled in prior vears and the Group is in process to recover the financing
as per agreement, from the Musharaka partner.

8.4 The combined forced sales value (FSV) of the underlying assels as securily against musharaka financing amounts o
Rupees 105.140 million (2023: Rupees B0.949 million) In aggregate. '

8.5 Mo provision has been recognized due to the availability of the forced sale value benefit of the collateral held as security
against financing, Furthermaore, as fully explained in note 2.9 the Group also applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to
evaluate the provisioning impact. Consequently, a5 per the ECL model under IFRS G, the impairment impact is materially
same to the provisioning reguirements under Modaraba Regulations, 2021,

8.6 Contractual installments receivable on Musharaka financing facilities:

Due within one year 13,949,054 16,949,054
Due after one year 12,000,000 12,000,000

25,949,054 18,949,054

9. LOAN TO EMPLOYEES - SECURED

Laan to employess 595,503 769,501
Less: Current portion of loan to employees (210,000} (192,000

385,503 577,501

9.1  This represents profit free personal loans provided to employees of the Group ranging from Rupess 0.03 million to
Rupees 0.5 million. These are repayable over a maximum period of 10 years and secured against thelr provident fund
balance. The fair value adjustment in accordance with requirements of IFRS- 9 “Financial Instruments” in respect of long
term loan s not considerad material and hence not recognized.
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10. TRADE DEEBTORS - UNSECURED Note Rupees Rupees
Considered good 175,324,083 91,409,541
Considered doubtful 469,825 4,441,612
10.1 175,794,808 95,851,153
Less: Allowances for expectad credit loss
Balance as at 01 July 4,441,612 4,331,674
Recognized during the year 428,416 109,938
Bad debis written off during the year (4,400,203) -
Balance as at 30 June 469,825 4,441,612
175,324,983 a1 541
10.1 Ageing analysis of trade debtors are as follows:
Mot yet due 164,972,809 87,614,237
Lipte 30 days 4,290,308 3,552,834
31 to 90 days 6,112,191 36,270
91 days to 180 days = 302,701
More than 180 days 419,500 4,345,111
75,794,808 95,851,153
11. ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Due from associated undertakings 111 79,885 6,893,714
Advance against purchase of stock - 17,400,297
Advance against expenses 35,029 948,709
Advance against salaries 11.2 58,000 19,000
Short-term prepayments 704,364 659,732
Due from AML project 11.3 14,754,723 8,693,703
Other receivables 11.4 1,580,170 1,825,465
17,212,171 36,440,620
11.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from associated undertakings at the end of any month during the year was Rupees
0,080 million {2023 Rupees 7,047 milllon ).
11.2  The maximum aggregate amount due from officers and employees at the end of any month during the year was Rupees
0.200 millkon (2023 Rupees 0.199 milllon}.
11.3  This includes operational expenses bome by the Group on behailf of the AML project. The Group has entered into an

amangement with an individual to engage in a business segment under the name and style of "FPM AML/CFT Solutions,”
serving the corporate and financial sector, The Group is responsible for managing the project's operations as the
"Modarib” and may temporarily advance upto Rupees 16 million to the project, while the other party is responsible for
investing in the project as the “Raab-ul-Maal.” The net profit from this contract is shared between the Modarit and Raab-
ul-Maal in a ratio of 65:35. The movement in balance due to / (from) AML project is as under:

Opening balance as at 1 July 8,693,703 1,756,617
Add: Payments made during the year on behalf of project 23,242,478 11,889,671
Less:Recovered from the project (17,181,458) (4,952,585)

Balance as at 30 Juns

14,754,723 8,693,703

The AML project has consistently incurred losses since its inception. In adherence to the Islamic principle of Modaraba
financing, these losses shall be borne by the Raab-ul-Maal. Conseguently, no loss have been recorded in the Group's
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11.4 This includes Rupees 1.2 million deducted directly from the bank account of the Group on the instruction of the Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR) vide letter no. CIR/Zone-1/CRTO/KH1/2016/2544 dated 15 December 2016 on account of non
deduction of withholding tax. (refer Note 27).

2024 2023
12. MODARABA FINANCING - SECURED & CONSIDERED DOUBTFUL MNote Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 1,822,314 1,923,382
Less: Recovered during the year {1,822,314) {101,068)
Balance as at 30 June - 1,822, 314
Less: Provision for doubtful recoveries - -
= 1,822 314

12,1 In the prior yaar the Group signed and fulfilled an arrangement with Advanced Power Solutions and Technologies (APS)
for instailation of new UPS systems and upgrading of existing UPS systems of a bank, at its branches all over Pakistan.
The profit on the investment |s shared between the Group and APS in the ratio of 50:50. The financing was secured by
way of mortgage of property. In the current year full amount of financing s recovered by Modaraba,

i3. SHORT-TERM MURABAHA FINANCING - SECURED

Considered good - 13,775,122
Considered doubtful - 1,847,360
2 15,622,491

Less: Provision or doubtful recoveries - -
= 15.52.'«1‘491

13.1  [wring the year all of the shart term murbaha financiing arrangements have heen completely settled. Effective prafit on
these arrangerments ranged from 11% to 14% per annum recelved on agreed terms dunng the vear.

14. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Current portion of murabaha financing & 43,479,040 53,345,881
Current portlon of diminishing musharaka financing 7 - 282,937
Current portion of musharaka financng 8 13,949,054 16,949 054
Current portion of loans fo employees g9 210,000 192,000
57,638,094 75,769,672
15, ACCRUED PROFIT
Profit receivable on musharaka financing 949,377 2,200,372
Profit recelvable on diminishing musharaka financing - 14,223
Profit recelvable on bank deposits 583,199 280,017
1,532,576 2,494,612
16. ADVANCE INCOME TAX AND PREPAID LEVY-NET
Advance income tax-net
Advance incame tax is.1 74,987,763 51,599,370
Less: Provision for taxation (10,881,326) {4,018,741)

64,106,437 47,580,629
Prepaid levy-net

Prepaid levy 621,877 137,014
Less: Levy payable 621 B77 137,014
64,106,437 4?;5511‘629

16.1 This includes an amount of Rupees 46.96 million (2023 Rupess 37.83 million) refundable from Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR) as per Income Tax Returns filed for relevant tax years.
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17. SHORT TERM INVESTMENT Note Rupees Rupees
At fair value through profit or loss
Pak Qatar-daily dividend plan 17.1 III'SDBiEﬁB Eﬂ-i??ﬁiﬂ-IE
17.1 Movement in short term investment
Opening investmeant 20,776,415 -
Add:Purchase during the year - 20,000,000
Add: Profit Reinvested { Dividend-net of tax) 3,532,254 776415
Less: Redemption during the year (2,000,000} -
Closing investrment (213,087 units) 21,308,669 20,776,415
2024 2023
18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 87,672 70,148
Cash at banks
= Current accounts 161 9,137,953 11,972,070
- Deposit accounts 18.2 &1B.3 37,898,008 34,370,838
47,123,633 46,413,056

18.1 This include Rupees 0.563 million { 2023: Rupees 0.757 million) in respect of FPM-AML project. (refer Note 11.3).

18.2 This includes Rupees 5.166 million {2023: Rupees 7.468 million) in respect of Redemption Reserve Fund established on
account of Certificate of Musharaka.

18.3 These carmies profit rate in respect of deposit accounts ranging from 11.010% to 21.550% (2023: 4.76% o 12.18%) per
annuim,

19, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

2024 2023 2024 2023
(Number of certificates) Rupees Rupees
11,989,930 11,989,930 Certificates of Rupees 10 each fully paid in
cash, 119,899,298 119,899,208
1,798,490 1,798,490 Banus certificates issued of Rupees 10 each. 17,984,895 17,584,895
13,788,420 13,788,420 137,884,193 137,884,193

19.1  Asat June 30, 2024, Paramount Investments Limited (the Group Management Company) holds 14.26% (20231 14.26%)
representing 1,965,768 certificates (2023: 1,965,768 certificates) of the Modaraba.

20. CAPITAL RESERVES

Statutory reserve 20.1 87,615,345 509,240,549
Merger reserve 20.2 1,935,160 1,935,160

89‘55&51!5 61,175,709
T Tos ————
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20.1  Statutory reserve represents profit set aside to comply with the Prudential Regulations for the Medaraba issued by the
SECP vide S.R.O, 2B4I)/2021 dated March 05, 2021, These Regulations require Modaraba which is not compliant with
minimum equity requirements as provided in the regulations, shall create reserve fund to which shall credit an amount
equivalent to 100% of of k= annual after-tax profit tll such Gme the minimum equity requirements are complied with.
During the year, the Modaraba transferred 100% of its after tax profits amounting to Rupees 2837 million (2023 Rupees
6.54 million).

20.2  In accordance with decision of the Honourable High Court of Sindh as on December 08, 2004, the First National Madaraba
{FNM) was merged with the Group. The Group recelved a sum of Rupees 10.568 million from FMM, Including Rupees 8.663
milllon as a certificate capital and Rupess 1.935 million as capital resarve,

2024 2023
21, DEFERRED INCOME Note Rupees Rupees
Deferred murabaha income 21.1 15,101,882 18,919,498
15,101,882 18,919,498
Less: Current portion of deferred income {7,139,248) (10,399,178}
7,962,634 8,520,320
21.1 Deferred murabaha income
Balance as at 01 July 18,919,498 24,587,049
Add: Deferred income for the year 10,736,820 15,657,499
Lass: Income recognized during the year (14,065,787) (21,365,050}
Less: Transferred to suspense income (488,649} -
Balance as at 30 June 15,101,882 18,919,498
22, CERTIFICATES OF MUSHARAKA
Balance as at 01 July 167,500,000 177,500,000
Issued during the year 26,375,000 23,275,000
Redesmed during the year (25,475,000} {33,275,000)
168,400,000 167,500,000
Less: current partion of certificates of musharaka (47,250,000) (29,310,000)

Balance as at 30 Jung 121,150,000 l:ﬂlllguluﬂu

22.1 In accordance with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by tho SECP through S.R.O. 284(1)/2021 dated March
5, 2021, the authority to issue Certificates of Musharaka (COM) by a Modaraba will be automatically suspended if the
Modaraba becomes non-compliant with any of the conditions cutlined in Regulation 19 of the Prudential Regulations.
However, existing Modarabas with valid permissions to issue COM, which are non-compliant, are reduired to achievs
compliance within one year of the effective date of these regulations provided that, during this one-year interim pericd, the
iotal COM of such Modarabas will be capped at the existing level, e, the outstanding balance as of the date the
regulations came into force,

On August 15, 7022, the SECP, via S.R.D. 1547(1)/2022, amended these requlations. These amendments extend the
compliance period to three years in cases of non-compliance with the conditions outlined In Regulation 17(1) subject to
certain conditions. The Modaraba, based on legal advice, understanels that the compliance period for Regulation 19 is alse
considerad as extendead to 3 years given the conditions of Regulation 19 are that of Regulation 17(1).

As of the reporting year-end, the Modaraba remains non-compliant with the credit rating and minimum equity requirements
stipulated In Regulation 17 and 1% respectively. The management, however, maintains that the deadline for full compliance
s August 14, 2025, based on the amendments introduced on August 14, 2022, which modified the compliance timeline.
This interpretation is further supported by the conduct of the regulator and aligns with the legal principle of "Non-
Retroactivity.” The management s canfident to comply with the requirements within the extended compliance date |.e.
August 14, 2025,
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22.2  These certificates have different denominations and are repayable within three months to five years. The expected share of
profit on thase certificates ranges from 8.5% to 14.5% (2023: 7% to 12%:) per annum.

22.3 A Redemption Reserve Fund is established on account of Certificate of Musharaka (refer Note 19,2,

2024 2023
23, CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees

Due to associated undertakings 286,837 .
Creditars 4,314,680 1,190,140
Accrued expenses 1,843,534 1,479,324
Sindh workers' welfare fund 2,510,191 1,680,403
Withhelding Inceme tax 3,287,505 1,920,996
Share of modarib payable under FPM petra 1,915,687 1,591,369
Payable to provident fund - 136,009
Others 2,381,083 1,089,828

16,539,517 9,098,069

24, This represents amount payable to legal successors of musharaka holders which s due but unclaimed dus to pending
documentation on death of the respective musharaka holders.

25. ACCRUED PROFIT ON CERTIFICATES OF MUSHARAKA

Balance as at 01 July 3,613,638 2,198,370
Add: Accrued during the year 21,504,057 18,334,637
Less: Paid dunng the year (21,603,415) {16,919,268)
Balance as at 30 June §£EIM g ﬁig Egg

26. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Caontingencies

Name of the court, agency or | Description of the proceaedings and relief
authority saaali Principle Parties | Date instituted
i Commissioner [nland Revenue  During the prior year, the Sindh Revenue Board  Sindh Revenue
{SRE} has raised accumulated demand of Board and the 18- Jul-19

Rupees 7.064 milllon vide orders 6259 of 2019, Modaraba
632 of 2019, 635 of 2019 and 636 of 2019
dated 19 July 2019, 23 July 2019, 25 July 2019
and 29 July 2019, on the grounds that the
Group's activities fall under tariffs 9809, 8822,
8822.2 and 9B22.3 of Second Schedule of the
Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 (the
Act).The Assistant Commissioner of Sindh
Rerenue  Board {SBB]- after  providing
opportunity of being heard to Modaraba, issued
order vide 915 dated 27 April 2022, whereby
the Commissioner demanded the sales tax and
penalty amounting to Rupees 7.56 milllion and
0.708 million respectively for the tax perinds
July 2011 to June 2017 on account of non-
chargeabliity of Sindh Sales Tax agalnst rental
income of the Modaraba, The Modaraba has
filed appeal before the Commissioner Appeals -
SRB and did not record any provision for this
matter, as thair tax advisor is confident that the
pending appeal will be decided in the Group's
favour,
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Name of the court, agency or | Description of the proceedings and relief

thority saught Principle Partias | Date instituted

il Commissioner Inland Revenue  An amount of Rupees 1.2 million has been Sindh Revenue

deducted from the bank account of the Group  Board and the 15-Dec-18
on the instructions of the FBR vide |etter Modaraba
#CIR/Zone-1/CRTO/Kh/2016/2544 dated 15
December 2016 on account of non deduction of
withholding t@x. The matter was taken to
Cmn'ﬂsslwr Imland Revenue (Appeal 1019,
¥arachi who remanded back the case to the
officer with directions to provide an opportunity
of being heard to the Appellant. The worthy
Commissionar In its Order vide no. 262017
dated 26 January 2017 has remanded the
matter to the revenue. Management is confident
that the deducted amount will be refunded,
thevefore, no expense has been booked in this
regard.
2024 2023
b} Commitments Note Rupees Rupees
There were no commitments outstanding as at the reporting date (2023; Ml
Letter of Guarantees 124,300 317,500
27. INCOME FROM TRADING OPERATIONS
Tncame from:
- FPM Petra 7.1 86,884,917 31,602,424
- EPM Solution 27.2 2,098,869 6,188 636
88,983,786 37,791,060
27.1 Income from FPM petro
Revenue - net 7.1.1 548,977,083 282,218,779
Less: Direct costs
Cost of sales 27.1.2 410,616,724 229,741,862
Transpartation charges 3,580,888 3,753,650
Labaur charges 1,926,712 1,048,658
Lab te<ting 189,850 123,275
Share of modarib 45,777,992 15,956,910
462,092,166 250,616,355
86 917 Eliﬁﬂlid-}bf‘r

27.1.1 This reprasents revenue (net of sales tax) generated from chemical business of FPM Petro Services, Sales tax charged on
sales tax invoices issued during the year in aggregate amountad to Rupees 99,44 million (2023: 50.2 million).

27.1.2 Cost of sales

Opening stock 37,779,122 H,680,322
Purchases 396,940,265 258,840,662
Less: closing stock {24,102,663) (37,779.122)
Cost of sales ME:I.E'?:H 229,741,852
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27.2  Income from FPM solution Note Rupees Rupees
Revenue - net 27.21 3,974,177 15,276,583
Less: cost of revenue 1,875,308 o 087,947
2,008 869 B, 188,636

27.2.1 This represents revenue (net of Sindh Sales Tax on Services) generated from Project Power solution business of FPM
Solutions, This includes income from Service Level Agreements (SLA) entered into by FPM Solutions with the client to
provide services in respect of stand by generators, UPS and other power back up solutions. Sindh sales tax on services
charged on sales tax invoices issued during the year in aggregate amounted to Rupees G.424 million (2023; 2.050
millien}.

8. ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and benefits 281 1B,B59,762 16,501,165
Utilities 2,338,144 1,412,749
Repalrs and maintenance 593,498 472,590
Takaful 609,676 339,138
Rent, rates and taxes 8.2 2,507,253 2,341,224
Travelling and conveyance 5,057,948 3,158,255
Communications 1,209,488 654,448
Printing and stationery 407,950 452,381
Auditors’ remuneration 283 926,000 708,750
Legal and professiona| 427,360 460,000
Fees and subscriptions 4,809,236 4,599,246
Bad debts written-off 3,730,868 1,633,418
Stock in trade- written off 113,480 -
Mews papers and periodicals 9,560 11,855
Advertisament and publicity 36,000 122,500
Degreciation and amortization 2,369,720 2,564,019
Loss on disposal of fixed asset - 21,669
Others 1,606,806 707,830

45,702,749 36,161,337

28.1 Salaries, allowances and benefits include 0.639 million Rupees (2023: Rupees 0,548 miilion) on account of the Group's
contribution to the staff provident fund.

2B.2 This includes Rupees 1.053 million charge by director (2023: Rupees 0,933 million) in respect of rent for office premises,

28.3 Auditors’ remuneration

Riaz Ahmad & Company
Statutory audit fee 504,815 493,500
Half wearly review foo 118,148 115,500
Cerification fes 102,037 99,750
Consolidation fee 115,000 -
840,000 708,750
Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co.
Statutory audit fee 75,000 -
Out of pocket 5,000 -
Sindh Sales tax 5,000 -
86,000 -
926,000 708, 750
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29, OTHER INCOME Note Rupeas Rupeas
Financial assets - shariah compliant
Profit on bank deposits 3,681,168 3,794,062
Dividend income 4,145,849 913,429
Others 133 404,095
Non-financial assets
Others 367,952 -
HIIEEIII:I! 5,201,589
30. FINANCIAL CHARGES
Profit on certificates of musharaka 21,504,057 18,334,637
Bank charges 52,977 56,928
21,557,034 18,391,565

31. MODARABA COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT FEE

The Group Management Company is entitled to a remuneration for services rendered to the Modaraba under the
provisions of the Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1280 upto a maximum of
10% per annum of the net annual profits of the Modaraba, The fee for the year ended 30 June 2024 has been

recognized at 10% (2023 10%) of profit for the year.
32. LEVY

Firial tax

32.1

621,877

137,014

32.1 This represents portion of final tax paid under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001), representing

levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

33. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current
for the year 10,881,326 4,018,741
for prior year 513,924 1,092,791
11,495,250 5,111,532
Deferred 331 - -
11,495,250 5,111,537
Relationship between income tax expense and
accounting profit
Profit before income tax 39,869,709 11,651,657
Tax @ 29% (2023: 29%) 11,562,216 3,378,981
Effect af:
Accelerated depreciation 24,292 346,475
Provision for expected credit loss 35,565 503,714
Prior year 613,924 1,002,791
Other computational adjustments (740,747) (210,429)
11,495,250 5,111,532
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33.1 DEFERRED TAX (ASSET) / LIABILITY Note Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax asset comprises of;
{Deductible) temporary differences on:
Murabaha financing (177,541) {180,385)
Musharaka financing - -
Trade debtors {122,638) (1,288,067
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities {1,513,365) -
(1,813,544) [ 1,468,453)
Deferred tax liability comprises of:
Taxable temporary differences on:
Property and equipment 594,719 997,938
(1,218,B25) {470,515)
Unrecognized deferred tax asset 332 1,218 835 470,515

As at 30 June = -

33.2 Deferred tax asset as at June 30, 2024 to the extent of Rupees 1.218 million (une 30, 2023: 0.471 million) has naot
been recognized as the Group is uncertain about the timing and extent of future taxable profits against which such
benefits can be utilized,

34, EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Prafit attributable to certificate holders of the Modaraba (RUPEES) 28,374,795 6,540,125
Welghted average number of certificates (NUMBERS) 13,788,420 13,788,420
Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted (RUPEE) 2.058 0.474

34.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic eamings per share of the Group, since thera are no convertible instruments in
imsue as at June 30, 2024 (2023: Nil) which would have any effect on the earnings per certificate if the option to
convert is exercised.

325. CHANGES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Financing Financing cash MNon Cash
2024 01 July 2023 cash infi thows changes 30 June 2024
Rupeas Rupees Rupeas Rupees Rupees

Unelaimed profit
distributions 19,234,855 - (505,170) - 18,729,685
Accrued profit on
certificates of
musharaka 3,613,638 - (21,603,415) 21,504,057 3,514,280
COM matured
parties 9Insniuun - 7,050,000 gtaunimn
Certificates of
musharaka 15?‘snn!uun 26!3?5;(11:!0 gﬂéﬁ‘ssmg = 168,400,000
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Financing || Financing ca Non Cash
2023 01 July 2022 cash infl outfl s 30 June 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Unclaimed profit
distributions 21,135,469 - (1,900,614) - 18,234,855
Accrued profit on
-certificates of
musharaka 2,198,270 - (16,919,269) 18,334,637 3,613,638
COM matured
parties 1,850,000 - - 8,000,000 9,850,000
Certificates of
musharaka 177,500,000 23,275,000 (33,275,000) - 167,500,000
36. REMUNERATION OF OFFICERS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
20p4 223 |
Other Other
Office . Offi
L employees oers employees
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Managerial remuneration 5,833,219 8,507,924 5,611,440 7,643,425
Allowances 785,694 2,123,248 790,288 973,910
Provident fund 307,451 331,662 280,572 267,433
EOBI 14,520 238,180 52,800 116,940
Others 2,387 715,477 5,250 759,107
6,943,271 11,916,491 6,740,350 9,760,815
Number of person 4 13 4 15

36.1 Three (3) officers are provided free use of the Group's cars including fuel and insurance.

36.2 No remuneration paid to the directors of the Group Management Company during the year (2023: Nil).

I 113



it
S
<
L
O
e
o
N
-
-~
|
=
m
S
B
L
5

e
o
3
i
&=
G
=
I
i
=
3
£
7
A
<
3
I
c
g

I

. :SMOJf0) S 318 SUAWaIELs
[euEUY 3534 U ARYVASE PSOPSIp KEIDACS UBBq 3ney LI 350U) Uew JBLA0 ‘Saiied paERI L SUDIDESUen 10 (B1R] 'SARied pajeRl Snojen LM suogoesuen
310 S3IE) SSAUSNY 40 351103 [EULIDY 3y Ut 009 3y “jpuosiad Juswabeuew /3y pus sbueLapuN pateosse *fuedwon jausbeuew 4o asudwon sagued pieRl 341

S3L1YVd 0ILVT3d HLIM NOLLDVSNYYL

A

N

'l

mm ‘L€ BION U PaSO[asIp Sl S88340 40 Buisudwon (puuosiad juswabeusw Ay o) uogesusdwed o B0 T'LE
e
a1 i
o (ese't) (£56') ByeBysnLL puN4 JEpaLg
gri=f ) 10 @Y Vo 0sd panay swaps galodws - pajw .
= (ooc'oor'r)  (oo0'oor's) DYRIRUSIW 0 SAENLE) PUN)  ApAGd  papUNy SWRLISBAN]  JUnOWeled SPURY JUBLIBIR JEIS
008'L12 008212 Js0ap Andes - . sipag
FSSTZTT - 3geAs0Rl BA0  BGRIEPO 10 2UBYS STE LY sap0ssy bung-Ty paloy Jojesauag
- SIJS3AU] EXRIBUSTY
LTH'E68'S. - 3jgennal | (igeded) ;B0 SOUIPIOY AURIYLED AT HT papu .
SWaWgSaNU]  junowelRq fueduinyy waiwabeuey
uedwa) Junoweled Auedwn] Amipisgng
aouejeq Guisop (ajqehed) [ ajqenrmoay
ET7'9T L0S'T6T BjRleyshul . pUNY JLSpinLg
Jo sajERIEd U pred 40 awayps ssafoduwy - pEgn
£00'8k5 Z11'6E9 PUNY BU O UCANQIALOD puny  JApwaid  papUNg SWRUGSIAUT  JUNOWRIEd SpURY JUBLIBIA YEIS
T10'888'T +98'958'T pedusy - - 36nads JiBL pUe S0
FI6'S66'T T95'0EH'E seah au Buunp apew suawley
OrE'0ES"T £2T'602's %) PRI
U0 ey Bjes Bupnpul 3y Juswabeue,  sBuipioy 1IN0 GOz SWALIMU]  JunDwase Aueduwor) wawabeueyy
saadny saadny uoRIEsUEI JO 2IMEN diysuopejas josiseg  Kyied pajepsy Jo awey EqeIepOl
€20z yzoz Yum diysuone|ay

I 114



=

3
=
—
._rTvJ.u
Hﬂ.
S
_ﬁﬁh_-“_
5
bR

e
o
i ]
s |
=
it
c
o
L)
=
5]
=
L
u
=
T
.
p=
<

i}

FIRST PARAI

WMODARABA

(090’917 '872) BRG'ZT {p11'812'11) (STED0L'¥E) (v09'07E'28T) sanijige JuaLibag
1Eb'899 Bk 169061 G 99t 'b BEE 261°E51 (58818162 sjEsse Juawias
saadny saadny saadny saadny saadny
[®0L S1II0 suonn|os Wd4 0034 Wd4 Bupueury
_ £207 |
Troe'ss0'sc7) | E€8EC T6b5'299'61)  (D6L'I6T'EL)  (8S8'6VTIEL) SaIyIge)| WBWERS
PIT'TI6vLY S9H'68T 67L'908'01 SHi'068'TLT SSS'6T0T6T slasse Juaiubas
soadny saadny soadny seadmy seadny 2j0N
lej0L S0 SU0IN|0S Wdd 0034 Wd4 Bupueuyy
[ 4[4 |
sanjiqey) pue syasse Juawbag

‘Moj2q pejuRsald @1 sjuswbes sjgepoda) 5 dnoug ay3 Buipebal uonewLo]

. . “dnoag au) Aq 2uoq 30 ey

S50] 5B 243 ‘9609 40 24eyS 1y0ud 0} PA(IUD 5| pue aumuan a4y paoueul sey dnoud au ‘ualuabuede ay) Jad Sy 'STOZ BT Aenugad wol Paya M paloid
sl pauels sey dnosg ay) *AfeucneusEiUl pUB AJ[BUONRU SI0138S URIAKIP 0] SHUBUDCIWLCD (EJWSYD SNoLeA Jo uoiswosd ul pabebus seainas oaad Wdd
Sa0|AIRS 0433d Wdd

U adid U] sue sjenuo] Bug o Auew se 1af0ld Sy Ul SUBLISAAU] S BsER0u 0 sueyd sey dnoug 3y "sausYied Sdi

ybnosys poddns dn-ydeg spinoud o) 51 1el0ad SSaUISNG S JO ANANDR LIBW BU| “JUMOBJNUE)| SB |20 S8 J035S [BIUBLH JO PiBy S4Y) U| SUOGR|2J SS3UISNg
pocb e ajesauah o) ajge sey pouad Buruodal s w pue Ansnpuy BULNDRINURY PUB 30IAIRS alf 0] SuoRn|os Jamod Buipwoud Jo) aloud Siyl paLeNs Sey dd
SUONINIOS Wd4d

"
YSIBYSTILY PUE BgEIEPOL ‘eyRieysnw BuySIIwIp ‘eyegeIniy SapnpLy sanine) Bupueuly suaip ajelodiod pue siEnpiapu; o) Bunueuy sapiwald dnosg ay)

Bupueuly
Jonod s,dnowsy auy sad se smoyog se 2ue sjuawbss ageuoda) sdnolsy ayp

SINFW9I35 SS3INISNE LNOEY NOLLYWHO4NI

UBE

T'8E

I 115



i}

3
=
—
._rTvJ.u
Hﬂ.
S
_ﬁﬁh_-“_
5
bR

e
o
i ]
s |
=
it
c
o
L)
=
5]
=
L
u
=
T
.
p=
<

FIRST PARAM

WMODARABA

16£9708C  (0ZV91E)  (ZZL'EC0T)  E66LISTL  (09v1S6Tw)
(0sz's6¥'11) = (osz's6t'T1)
TY9'TTL'6E (oz#'91€) (zze'seoT) E66'2TS'TL (01Z'95¥'0E)
(£28'1z9) (£28'Tz9)
GIS'EVE'DY (ozv'91€) (zze'szo') £66'£15'2L (eee'ven’sr)
(99.9z8) 6Z0'€ 00€TF (656'6L'T) 98809
SBZ'0LT'TH (6t¥'61E) (zzo's90'7) TS6'L66'EL (Z6T'evF'0E)
(v¥1e65"y) £28'91 £p'62T (s66'122'8) L15T8E'E
6Z'E9L'SH (9£2'9¢£) (69¥'v62'7) Lb6'61Z'28 (pee'sza'ee)
(veo’ssstz)  (191) (96€) (rssT) (rr6pSSTZ)
£9¥'0ZE'L9 (se1'9g€) (ezo'v62'T) 10512228 (oe8'0Lz'zT)
SET'S61'8 6YE £08'ST 601'06€ 0L9'SLL'L
(099'ss1) (91v'szy) - 9sL'tLt
(esz’se’s0s)  (vw'oge) (1wo'ses’s)  (ve6'swi'zov)  (L11'esw'oe)
TZT611'695 LLT'PLE'E €80'4L6'8YS  198'£91'01
soadny seadny saadny soadny seadny
€304 s3940 SuOnNIOS Wdd 0412d Wdd Bupueur
vzoz

JESA 34} 10} JWosd
astade xe awoou]

XE] SW00UI 340534 1Oid

M@

AA{ P Xe awau| 210529 W0k
UMY BURJiaM SIHIOM UPUIS

53} Juawabeuew s Aurdwio) Bgelepopy

saluEyD [BioueLld

ST B0
SaLaneal NRgnop J0j UoSIACLY

sasuadxe BunemRdo DUE LDNRISLRUDY
anuanas bugesadg

uawbas spqedodal Ag s)nsal pue anusAsl 5,4n0I9 Y] JO Sisheus ue s Buimoljod

S}jnsad pue anuaaad Juawbas  g'ge

)
=
—



LL]
BET ¢ AAATET

L
LER UL

FIRST PARAMOUNT
MODARABA

$
3
oy
a
W
O..r.
—l
-ul.._'.“.
3
b ]
S
=
=
—_
2

T
=)
=
-
=
=)
|
£
I
W
=
m
=
L
y
E
Kc
@
=
&

T

q.

SZT0PS 9 06T'ST 697 '08E 08€'79 52 (S1£°L19'6T)
(1e8'TI1's) - - . (zes11's)
959'159'11 06T'ST 69z'08¢ 08€'29¢'5T (€81'905'¥1)
(bT0'ZET) = ] (p10°2€ET)
0/9'88L'TT 06T'ST 697'08E 09€'794'ST (9T'69E%T)
(985'0v2) (o7€) (19£'¢2) (£94'525) 8bT €67
952'620'21 00S'sT 0£0'88E £r1'8BT'92 (£1¢'799'%1)
(bBS'9EE'T) (gze'n) (bTT'ED) (S06'026'Z) 85T'629'T
0b8'59E'ET €211 i 8b0'602'62 (s£5'16291)
(S55'T6E°8T) (8L (£s) (es1) (8.5°06€°81)
SOb'2S4'1E 000'81 00z'1ck 102'602'62 £00'660'2
685'102'6 1581 566601 06€ZEy 160'TH3'Y
£eL's (8g6'601) . 199'811
(5£9'598'562) (e15) (0b0'5t8'$T) (896'THb'£52) (611'85'L2)
TELTWECE - £85'9£2ST BLL'BIZ'T8T OLE'LT6'HT
saadny saadny saadny ssadny saadny
le0L SE) SUORN|OS Wdd onad Wdd Buueuyy
€207

Jeah 8y} J0j uosd

asuadya xeq awooug
XE3 BLUOIUI 340524 J4o.d

Ana)

ANG PUB XE] SWO3UI 31030 1404d

pUN BJBJ(aM SIBHOM YPUIS

32y Wawsbeuew s uedwo) eqeiepal

sabieyn eoueUY

ALLODU| SBU0

SEliEn00a) \NPJGNoP J10) UDISINDIY

sasuzdxa Bupessdo pue uogelsILwPY

anuanal Bunessdo

I 117



oxs
mmmm ZEL T TEE - £85'9/7'ST 6/L'917'287 DLE'LT6'SE
mm £B5'9LT'ST - £85'9/7'CT = - LOIN|OS Wdd -
=E- sLBITTR - : BLL'1T'THT - 043 W -
= “Wiay 3nuanay
807'LLT'E . - - 80Z'247'E Bupueuly exeleysnWw -
zZn'sse - - - 7IvseT Bupueuy exeseysn BulySILRLIP -
050'59€'12 2 - - 050'59E"12 Bunuewly eyeqeInw -
U0 Juou
anuanas bugesadg
saadny saatdny saadny sazdny saadny
1e30L s12130 SUOINIOS Wdd 04334 Wdd Bupueuy
_ €207 |
TZT'611'695 - LLT'PL6'E €80'£46'8YS T98°£9T'9T
S LIT'VL6'E - LLT'PL6'E . . UONN|OS el -
w £80'LL6'8YS - £80'£L6'8YS - 03 Wdd -
JM — o) 3nuzaay
Qe . .
ooy m SET'E66'T - - " SET'E66'T BURUBUY BYRIRYSIL -
s 6£6'80T - . - 6£6'801 Bunueul BYesRySIL BULISIUP -
ol
S £ £8L'590'VT - . - £8L'590'pT BUBUEUY BLBqRINL -
m. = U0 104
[ |
S5
= anuanal bupeladg
I saadny saadny saadny saadny seadny
@, m [e30L 12130 SUORINIOS Wdd 0433d Wdd Bupueuy
.
o ..n
_ur.. < anuasai bunesedy '€

3



FIRST PARAMOUNT
e

£22'0£9'605 vLY'89T 1+9'898's 166'StT'L9Y LTV'8Y'9E
908'909'T 010'z8 00T’z LTL'065 696'9Z6
0TL'69E'T vob TSH'1TT LT6'8TF £28'81L'
000'9€ 000'9€
095'6 095’6
08p'ETT 08Y'ETT
898'0€L'E - 898'0£L'E
9£7'608'¥ 16¢'08S 5§ 069'87Z'¥
09¢'Lzh . 09g'LTr
000'9Z6 000'98 000'0¥8
0S6'L0Y 00t'0s 085'L5€
28r's02'T 9819z 68Z'09 £10°085
8¥6'£50'S 00042 STT'TI8'Z £E8'TTT'T
EST'L6S'T TEY'ESD'T 005'98% 19Z'250°T
9£9'609 ZIE'T8 $9E'9TS
86¢'E65 51’28 005'T 9¥8'605
vPT'8EE'T T0T'891'T £$0'0LT'T
T9L'658'8T 6SE'0E8 E0¥'6Z0'8T
PLY'L96'E0Y BDE'SL8'T 99T'Z60'29%

seadny saadny seadny saadny saadny

lejoL s12410 SUORN|OS Wdd on2d Wdd Bupueuld
vZ0T

3
R
3
T
m.w.....
3
S
S
]
=
@
3

_——
c
8]

=
=

r—
|7

B

I
J
£
T

=

i

=

L

8

s

54

o= 1S

EAETITg)

UOgeTLIoWE pue uopenaldag
Aignd pue JuBLWASLRARY
sieaipojiad pue siaded smay

40 USYLM -3pRR U] 0I5
Lo-UENM SI93P peg
SUONAISONS pUE 5534
|euoissaya.d pue jebar|
UOGEBUNWR] SIDpPNY
Asone)s pue Buiulg
SUOEIUNLILY

sauekanuod pue BuppnesL
SBXE] pUE S3)es JUSY
‘3UBINSUT

aoUeUFLIeW pue sieday
SFRHAN

SUJBU PuB SIIUBMOIE ‘SRS
sasuadxa buesado pue uoneSSUIWPY

¥500 Ppadig

sesuadxa bunesado pue uolesIuLPpY  §°8E



Janam

HERT =

MODARABA

FEEAAT = B

FIRST PARANI

Lel/

T

:
3

Paramovni

Finsi

6£9'598'667 #0558t T 896' TP E52 BIT'845'LT
0€8' 0L LT T16'9E Zr1's01
699'7Z = 699'1Z
6109952 S0P'EST THE 606'E96'T
005221 005'98 000'9E
SSE'TT - 5SR'TI
8Ip'EE9'T SRZ'PEG - £ET'669
9Z'665'y 00'550'T 000'09 9bR'EBH'E
00009t 00009t
062804 - 052804
TBE'TSh 05861 TES'TEr
b bS53 DLT'8E OFB'LE BEF'BES
SST'9ST'E 005" LbE 0ST'4PE'T 509'99%'1
bZZTHE'T 96'cE6 001’58k 89E'726
8ET'6EE (117474 B68'092
065'7L 0b0'20T 0067 059'79¢
6hLTIHT 65£'959 066'55¢
59170501 000°E92'T - S91'BEZ'ST
20€'H0L'652 £p6'180'6 66£'919°052 -
saadny saadny saadny seadny
1230 SUoRN|OS Wdd 03d Wdd Bupueury
ETOT

[Amislamic Financial Institution)

=

SI2L30

wawdinba pue Auadoad Jo (esods|p U0 5507
uogezriowe pue uopeiaidag

Aoygnd pue Juawastuanpy

sieatpolad pue siaded smap

HO-U=NLM S102P Peg

uogdisqns pue saay

|euniss=joud pue [eba

uonessuNLRl SIoppny

“fieuoiels pue Bupuug

suofeunILIa)

anefznund pue Bujanel |

SINE] pue sael sy

a0ueInsU]

SOUBURJUIBLI PUR SHEdaY

sanilan

S}lj2uUaq pue SADUEMO|E ‘Sl ejes
sasuadxa bupesado pue uogessiuwpy

1500 PaJlg

N 120



3
S
lrm.
S
G
S
.,
:
m
B
e
G5

=
o
+
d
]
=
Wi
=
o
L
=
]
=
i
=
=
i
=
3

A1l

FIRST PARAMOUNT

e
O | Il [ s

AT

"SJUBLUIEIS [21JUBUY 35343 0] 7 A0U U| paquasep sapyed Bupunooe sdnaig auy se awes sy aue sjuawwbas ajgepodal auy Jo seijod Bununooe ay|

“SIB0ISND feuialxa woy paesauab spuawbas anoge ul palodas enuanay

5 £5T 8L5D6EBT
£5 £5T bS5
- LEOBEE'RT
saadny saadny seadny
SIS0 SUOIINIOS Wdd 0433d Wd4d Bupueuyy
£20Z
¥EO'LSS'T T 96E ¥55'T 6’ PSS '1T
96€ ¥SS'T £88'08
- - £50'P0S'TT
saadny saadny saadny
SUCIINIOS Wd4 0133d Wd4 Bupueuty
20T
565601 06E T5F 60 TH9'F
- 009'v0% 0p1'886
G65'60T 0612 156'259'¢
saadny seadny soadny
SUCINIOS Wdd 04324 Wdd Bupueuly
£00Z
L0882 60t'06€ 0£9'sLLL
- 864'68E E00'FZT Y
L08'8 119 £99'159'¢
saadiny saadny soadny
sSuo1IN|OS Id4 0133d Wd4 Bupueury

¥z

EeIRYSTU 0 SRIED LD o4
sabuey jeppueuld

eNeJeUSNiL JO SARIYAR0 U0 0K
sabueyd |epueuly

sabey |epueuly

sysodap ueq o 1yoid
AwWodUl Y

)IS0dap 3ueq LO 1oL
3WodU| BP0



Lé_hl-z—si @a vamownt VWaodavala
(Arvlslamic Financial Institution)

ll-l- l

FIRST PARANDUNT
MODARABA
sl 8 § | gl g =
3|88 8§ @ 2 |E 5 3
‘ 3 - o !
£ g g £ 5 g &
3| 3 | || 5 g3 27 9 °
gl & = '
5 & iR g & 8
s | ..,_|| I Flpe o =
£ = £ [
"5' = = )
g B :g S H ® : %E
£ ¢ & 88 : - 5%
g £ 5 g% £ 5 EE
L o LI 1
2 § & 5 E R s
%



First Paramount VHaodaraba
(Anislamic Financial Institution)

FIRST PARAMOUNT
IMODARABA

MULSAT EAMELER ~ QRHEN

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
39.1 Financial risk factors

The nbjective of the Group's financial risk management 15 to minimize volatility and provide maximum refurn to certificate holders.
The Board of Directors of the Group Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's risk management framawork and policies.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the financial performance.

The Audit Committee of the Group Management Company oversess how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by
the Group,

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of finandial instruments;
= Credit risk
- Liguldity risk
- Market risk

{(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial oss for the Group by failing to discharge an
nbl]gul:lnn The risk is generally limited to outstanding amount against financing facilities and trade debts. The Gmups policy is to
enter into financial contracts in accordance with the risk management policies and the requirements of the Modaraba rules and
regulations,

The carrying amount of these financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure at the reporting date.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Murabaha financing 75,462,003 99,799,029
Diminishing musharaka financing - 683,764
Musharaka financing 25,949,054 28,945,054
Loan to employees 595,503 765,501
Long-term deposits 264,500 264, 500
Trade debtors 175,324,983 91,409,541
Advances and other receivablas 15,472,778 17,431,882
Modaraba financing - 1,822,314
Shaort-term murabaha financing - 15,622,491
Shert-term deposit 2,707,194 3,950,000
Accrued profit 1,532,576 2,484 612
Receivable against sale of Al-Burg - 1,221,554
Shaort-terrm Investment 21,308,669 20,776,415
Bank balances 47,035,961 46,343,908

366,653,221 331,537,565

Description of collateral held

Thee Group holds security in the form of mortgage of properties, hypothecation and pledge of goods and demand promissory notes
against modaraba, murabaha, diminishing musharaka and musharaka Investments,

Concentration of credit risk

The Group manages credit risk and ks concentration through diversification of activities to avold undue concentration of risks with
individuals, groups or specific industry segments. For this purpose, the Group has established expasure limits for individuals / groups
and Industrial sectors,
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Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar

economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation o be similardy effected by the changes in econamic,

palitical or ather conditions. The Group believes that it 5 not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. The Group's bankers are
of good rating. Detalls of the industrial sector analysls of each financing are as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees o Rupeas o
Chemical, fertilizer and pharmaceutical 1,108,339 1.06% 14,920,679 0.85%
Fuel and enengy 4,840,910 4.63% 11,844,055 7.82%
Foad, tobacco and beverages 37,486,036 35.88% 51,778,689 34,1B%
Paper and board 26,925,056 25.77% 3,874,738 2.56%
Textlle and Garments - 0.00% = 0.00%:
Steel, enginearing and automobiles - 0.00% - 0.00%
Transpertation and communication 19,267,982 18.44%, 291,582 0.19%;
Others 14,847,679 14.21% 68,769,827 45.940%
:I.ﬂ&#?&m 100%a 15 1[4?9,5?1 ll]i]ﬁ
Group's operations are restricted to Pakistan only.
Ageing analysis of financing facilities:
2024 2023
'Ea;r_ﬂgg amount Eal"rﬁng_g_nmunt |
Provision held = Pravision held
[ Not impaired || Impaired | Not impaired || Impaired | "
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Mot past due 51,997,373 - 94,525,209 4 =
;‘;ﬂi“: LA 27,061,895 : : 53,753,538 . .
Past dus 91
o 1 v 5,348,629 = . 812,500 - -
Past due 1 to 2
16,952,537

Past dus 2 . . . . . .
vear - 3 years
Past due mare
il - (2,115,568) 2,115,568 = (2,388,324) 2,388,324
Total —202.360.438 ___(2,115.568) 2115568 _ 130000247 0 (2308323 2388303

Provision IS recogrised by the Group as per the reguirements given under Modaraba Prudential Regulations.

The: credit guality of balances with banks that are nefther past due nor impaired can be assessed by reéference to external credit
ratings (I available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating 2024 2023

| Banks [ Long-term || Short-term Agency ] Rupees Rupees

State Bank of Pakistan s Z 2 34,188 46,957
Habib Bank Limited AlR, A1+ PACRA 87,257 422,674
Habib Metropofitan Bank Limited AA+ a1+ PACRA 22,099,192 20,801,592
Faysal Bank Limited LY Al+ PACHEA 688,059 245 895
Meszan Bank Limited AR AL+ VIS 24,106,176 24,824,177
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A+ Al VIS 10,545 9,963
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited AA- Al PACRA 2,717 1,650

47,024,134 46,342,908

Due to the Group's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong
financial standing, management does nob expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Group.
Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.
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Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations: as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises
because of the passibility that the the Group could be reguired to pay its fiabilities earlier than expacted or difficutty in raising funds
to meet commitments associated with financial labilities as they fall due. The Group's appraach to managing liguidity is Lo ensure, as
far as possible, that It will always have sufficlent Hguidity to meet its labilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable Iosses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group manages liguidity risk by monitorng
future cash fows on a day-to-day basis, The amaunt disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

i Contractual cash flows |
Maturity after

Carrying Maturity upto one year but More than three

2024 amount one year upto threa years Tatal
years

Rupees Rupees Rupees i Rupees
Certificates of musharaka 168,400,000 47,250,000 70,225,000 50,925,000 168,400,000
Creditors, accrued and ofbwer
liabllities 10,454,984 10,454 0984 - - 10,454,584
Accrued profit on certificates of
musharaka 3,514,280 3,514,280 - - 3,514,280
Certificate of musharaka - matured : 2,800,000 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
Urnclatmed profit distributions 18,729,685 18,729,685 - = 18,729,685
Total 203,898,949 82,748,549 70,225,000 50,925,000 203,898,949

B Contractual cash flows ]
Maturity after

2023 Carrying Maturity upto one year but More than three Total

amount one yaar upto three years

years

Rupees Rupees Riipees Rupes
Certificates of musharaka 167, 5000, D0 29,310,000 57,660,000 80,530,000 167,500,000
Creditors, accried and other
fizbilities ) 5,360,661 5,360,661 - - 5,360,661
Accrued profit on certificates of
musharaka 3,613,636 3,613,638 - - 3,613,638
Certificate of musharaka - matured & 9,850,000 9,850,000 = o 9,850,000
Unclaimed profit distributions 19,234,855 19,234,855 » - 19,234 855

205,559,154 67,369,154 57,660,000 0,530,000 205,559,154

Market risk

Market risk maans that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumeant will fectuate because of changes in markat prices
such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The objective is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return, The Group |s not exposed to currency risk, The other price risk and profit rate
risk associated with the Groun's business activities are stated as under;

Other price risk

Othar price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Aucbuate because of changes
in market prices {other than those arsing from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrumeant or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial Instrumeant traded in the market.
There is other price risk of changes in the fair valpe of investment in muteal funds as a result of changes in the levels of net asset
value of units held by the Group, As at June 30, 2024, had thers been increase [ decrease In net asset value by 1%, with all other
variables heid constant, the profit before tax for the year and equity would hawe been higher f lower by Ruepees 0,213 million (June
30, 2023: Rupees 0.208 million) and Rupess 0.151 milllon {June 30, 2023; Rupees 0.148 million).
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(i) Profit / mark-up rate risk

Mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the markst yigld. The Group has
adopted approprate policies to minimise its exposure to this risk. At the reporting date, the profit rate profile of the Grouo's
significant mark-up baaring financial instruments was as follows:

2024 2023

Financial assets Rupees Rupees
Fixed rate
Murabaha financing 75,462,003 90,799,029
Diminishing musharaka financing = 683,764
Short-term murabaha financing - 15,622,491

75,462,003 116,105,284
Financial assets
Variable rate
Bank balances 37,898,008 34,370,838

E?Q&HDB 34;3?115833
Financial liabilities

Variable rate
Cerificate of musharaka 168,400,000 167,500,000
On statement of finandal position gap !:I.EDISDEEBBZI SIESEIIEEIEZE

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basls points in Interest rates at the reporting date would have {decreased) [/ Increased post tax profit for the year by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The following Information summarizes the
estimated effects of hypothetical Increases and decreases In interest rates on cash flows from flnancial assets and liabilities that are

subject to profit rate risk,
| 2024 I 2023 |
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial assets 269,076 (269,076} 244,033 [244,033)
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial liabilities {1,195,640) 1,684,000 {1,189,250) 1,675,000
Met effect (926,564 ) 1,414,924 (945,217 1,430,967

39.2 Recognized fair value measurements
{a) Financial Assets

Fair value hierarchy

Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair valves of the financial instruments that are recognized and measured at
fair value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair valug, the
Group has classified ibs financial instruments into the following three levels.

Leval 1: The falr value of financlal instruments traded In active markets {such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and
avallable for sale securlties) Is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for
financial assets heid b'l,.r_i‘:l'\»e Group Is the current bid price, These instruments are included in level 1.

Lewgl 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation technigues which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. 10 all sb_gnhl"ﬁcan: inputs required to fair value an Instrument are observable, the mstrument |3 (rcluded in level 2.

Level 3; If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

Investment of the Group carried at fair value are categorized as foliows:
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30-Jun-24
Lewel-1 Level-2 Level-3 Total
e m— --Rupees-----------
Assets
Short term investmant
Fair value through profit or lnss 21,308,669 2 o 21,308,669
Level-1 Level-2 ﬁ-a Total
-------- —-—Rupees-———---—-
Assels
- Short term investment
Falr value throuagh profit or loss 20,776,415 - - 20,776,415

There were no transfers between various levels ncf fair value higrarcy during the vear,
{b}  Non Financial Assets

The carrying value of all non-financial assets reflected In these financial statements are approximate thelr fair values. Falr
value s determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

39.3 Financial instruments by categories At amortized cost
20 2023
Rupees Rupees

Financial assets as per statement of financial position _
Murabaha financing 75,462,003 64,799,029
DHminishing musharaka financing C e 683,764
Musharaka financing 25,940,054 28,940,054
Loan to employaes 595,503 769,501
Long-term deposits 264,500 264,500
Trade debtors 175,324,983 91,409,541
Advances and other receivables 16,472,778 17,431,682
Modaraba financing - 1,827,314
Short-term murabaha financing - 15,622,491
Short-term deposit 2,707,194 3,950,000
Accrued profit 1,532,576 2494 612
Receivable against sale of Al-Burg - 1,221,554
Cash and bank balances 47,123,633 46,412,056

345,432,224 310,831, 20948

At fair value through profit or

loss
Short term Investment 21,308,669 20,776,415
| At amortized cost |

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Certificates of musharaka 168,400,000 167,500,000
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 10,454,984 5,360,661
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payabile 2,800,000 9,850,000
Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka 3,514,280 3,613,638
Unclaimed profit distributions 18,729,685 19,234,855

203,898,945 205,559, 154
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Reconciliation to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

As at 30 June 2024

Assets as per statement of financial position
Fined Assets

Intangibles

Long term investments

Murabaha financing

Diminishing musharaka financing
Musharaka financing

Loan e employeas

Long-term deposits

Stores and spares

Trate debtors

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Sindh !‘-uléa tax recelvable - net
Modaraba financing

Short-term murabaha financing
Short-term depasit

Accrued profit

Shart-term Investment

Advance income tax and prepaid levy-net
Cash and bank balances

As at 30 June 2024

Deferred Income

Certificates of musharaka

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Accrued profit on cartificates of musharaka
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable
Unclaimed profit distributions

Total as per
Financial Non-financial Statement of
assets assets Flnlqcl-ll
Position
Rupees Rupees Rupees
- 13,102,420 13,102,420
- 205,924 205,924
75,462,003 - 75,462,003
25,949,054 - 25,949,054
595,503 - 505,503
264,500 - 264,500
- 24,102,663 24,102,663
175,224,983 - 175,324,983
16,472,778 739,393 17,212,171
- 5,914,484 5,914,484
2,707,194 - 2,707,194
1,532,576 - 1,532,576
21,308,669 - 21,308,669
= 654,106,437 64,106,437
47,123,633 - 47,123,633
366,740,803 108,171,321 474,912,214
Total as per
Financial Non-financial Statement of
liabilities liahilities Financial
Position
Rupees Rupees Rupees
- 15,101,882 15,101,882
168,400,000 - 168,400,000
10,454,984 6,084,533 16,539,517
3,514,280 - 3,514,280
2,800,000 = 2,800,000
18,729,685 - 18,729,685
203,898,049 21,186,415 225,085,364
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As at 30 June 2023

Assets as per statement of financial position
Fixed Assets

Intangibles

Murabaha financing

Diminishing musharaka financing

Musharaka financing

Loan to employees

Long-term deposits

Stores and spares

Trade debtors

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Modaraba financing

Sindh sales tax receivable - net

Short-term murabaha financing

Short-term deposit

Accrued profit

Short term investment

Advance income tax and prepaid levy-net
Cash and bank balances

Receivabla against sale of Al-Burg

As at 30 June 2023

Deferred Income

Certificates of musharaka

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Accrued profit on certificates of musharaka
Certificate of musharaka - matured and payable
Unclalmed profit distributions

FIRST PARAMOUNT

MODARABA
Total as per
Financial MNon-financial Statement of
assets assets Financial
Position
Rupeeas Rupees Rupees
- 12,071,509 12,071,509
- 294,176 294,176
89,799,029 - 99,799,029
683,764 - 683,764
28,949,054 - 28,949,054
'?ﬁaﬁm = 768,501
264,500 - 264,500
- 3779122 37,779,122
91,409,541 - 61,409, 541
17,431,882 19,008,738 36,440,620
1,822,314 - 1,822,314
- 1,326,544 1,326,544
15,622,491 - 15,622,491
3,950,000 - 3,950,000
2,494,612 - 2,494,612
20,776,415 - 20,776,415
- 47,580,629 47,580,629
46,413,056 - 46,413,056
1,221,554 - 1,221,554
331,607,713 118,060,718 440 668,431
Total as per
Financial Mon-financial Statement of
liabilities liabilities Financial
Position
Rupees Rupees Rupees
- 18,919,498 18,019,498
167,500,000 - 167,500,000
5,360,661 3,737,408 9,098,069
3,613,638 - 3,613,638
9,850,000 - 9,850,000
19,734,855 - 19,234 855
205,559,154 22,656,906 228,216,060
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40. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

40.1 The following information is based on un-audited financal information of the Staff Provident Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023,

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Size of the funds - Total assets 10,163,135 8,140,662
Cost of investments 1,400,000 1,400,000
Fair value of investments out of Provident Fund 1,400,000 1,400,000
Percentage of investments made 14% 17%
40.2 Details of fair value of investments:
Bank balances 5,236,949 4,202,661
Investment in sharla compllant certificate of musharaka 1,400,000 1,400,000
6,636,949 5,602,661
41, NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The number of employeas during the year are as follows:
Mumber of employees - permanent 16 17
Average number of employees - permanent 16 17
MNumber of employees - contractual 1
Average number of employees - contractual 1

42, GENERAL

42.1 No significant rearrangements [ reclassification have been made except or reclassification as disclosad in note 2.18 to
these financial statements.

43. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements of the Group are approved and authonsed for issue on
by the Board of Directors of the Group Management Company.

For Paramount Investments Limited
{Group Management Company)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Pattern of Shareholding
AsOn 30062024
4 HAWING SHARES —>

NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS =rom To SHARES HELD PERGENTAGE
aga 1 100 5554 0.0403
136 101 500 30583 02218
207 501 1000 160285 1.0888
aig 1001 5000 874470 6.2421
74 5001 10000 5342801 3.6788
4= 10001 15000 553520 40888
23 15001 20000 300022 2.8287
14 20001 25000 310010 23138
iE 25001 30000 441771 32028
1 30001 25000 367410 2 548
- 35001 40000 262802 1.0080
z 40001 45000 54325 0.a118:

3 45001 50500 3326853 24125

1 50001 55000 208401 1.4060

¥ 55001 50000 230729 16734

2 B0001 BED0D 100010 1.3780

g 85001 TORID 542053 319380

1 TO001 F5000 73075 05385

3 75001 -BOR00 2308558 1.6743

3 20001 85000 243654 1.8034

ot 85001 100000 401002 3.5678

2 100001 105000 202002 1.4550

3 110001 115000 341782 24728

1 115001 120000 118722 0.2683

1 1250014 130000 123748 0.8337

2 150001 155000 303438 22007

1 180001 185000 162534 1.1785

1 185001 180000 187034 1.2565

1 185001 200000 198883 1.4432

1 220001 295000 220501 1.5002

3 225001 230000 657000 40832

1 420001 425000 423471 20712

1 425001 430000 420184 3.1128
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FIRST PARAMOUNT MODARABA
Patiem of Shareholding
As On 3006/2024

‘g HANING SHARES —>
NO, OF SHAREHOLDERS From To SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
1 500004 535000° =il 6423
1 1905001 1500000 1500000 108787
1 1205001 1310000 1205048 13.1183
1210 Comparty Taotsl 13732416 ‘100.0000
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Category of Shaseholdors
AsOn 30/06/2024

Particulrs Mo ol Folio Balance Shara Parcanlage
DIAEGTORS AND THEIR SPOUSE(S) AND MINOR CHILDREN 5 622030 45113
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKING AND RELATED PARTIES 4 1965768 14.2567
BANKS, DFI & NEFI 1 28 0.0002
GENERAL PUBLIC (LOGAL) 1166 7911000 57.3742
GENERAL PUBLIG (FORIEGH) 24 653040 60118
OTHERS 7 258803 16776
MODARABAS i 502282 36423
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE 2 1575435 11.4258

Company Total 1210 13788416 100.0000
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Notice of Annual Review Meeting

Matice is hereby given that the Annual Review Meeting of Certificate-Holders of First Paramount
Modaraba (FPM) will be held on Monday, 28 October 2024 at 03:30 pm at PIMA House, Room Na.
201, 2nd Floor, PECHS Community Hall, Block-2, PECHS, Shahrah-e-Quldeen, Karachl, to review the
performance of the Modaraba for the year ended 30 June 2024,

On behalf of the Board

Syed Mudassir Ali

(Company Secretary)

FParamount Investments Limited
Managers of First Paramourit Modaraba
07 October 2024

Karachi

MNotes:
1. Closure of Cortificate Transfer Books

The certificate transfer books shall remain closed from Tuesday, 22 October 2024 to Monday, 28
QOctober 2024 (both days inclusive), Transfers received in order al the office of the Registrar of First
Paramount Madaraba (FPM) L.e. THK Associates (Pvl) Lid., befora the close of business hours on
Monday 21 October 2024 will be treated as in ime for the purpose of attending the Annual Review
Meeating.

2. Change of Address

The Cerlificate holders are advised to nolify change in their address, if any, to the Share
Registrar, THIK Associates (Pvt) Ltd, at Plot No-32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, DHA Phaze VIl
Karachi — 75500, Telephona No: 021-111-000-322, Fax No: 021-35310191.

3. Participation in the meeting

To facilitate certificate holders, the Modaraba is holding this meeting physically and through video link
as allowead by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Te attend the ARM through video
link, the membears and their proxies are reguested to register themselves by providing the following
Information along with their Name, Folio Number, Cell Mo, and Number of Certificates hald in their name,
avalid copy of CMIC {both sides)/ passport attested copy of board resolution / power of attorney (in case
of corparale certificate holders) through email with subjeclt "Registration for FPM ARM" at
a.mudassiral@pm.com.pk by 15 October 2024:

MName of Member | CNIC | Folio Mo/ Participant | Cell No./ Email ID
/ proxy holdars Mo Id! Account Mo. WhatsdApp MNo.

The certificate holders who are registered after the necessary verification shall be provided a video link
by the Modaraba on the said email address. The login facility will remain open from start of the meeting
till its proceedings are concluded. Members are therefore, encouraged to attend the AGM through video
link and by consolidating their altendanca through proxies.
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A} For attending the Meeting Physically:

i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-accounl holder andlor the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authanticate his identity by showing his original CNIC or original passport
at the time of attending the Meeting.

i} In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney
with specimen signature of the noeminee shall be produced at the time of the Meeating.

B) For appeointing Proxies:

i) In case of individuals, the account halder and / or sub-account halder and their registration
detalls are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above
reguiremeant,

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the Torm.

i) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be

furnished with the proxy form.
iv) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC ar original passport at the time of the meeting.
v) In case of corporate enlity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with

specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been pravided earlier) along with proxy
form to the Company.

4. Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Modaraba's Website

In terms of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's (SECP) S.R.0. 634 2014, the
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2024 will also be placed on Modaraba's website
simultaneously with the dispatch of the same o the Certificate holders,

5. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through Email

Az per the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP") vide
S R.O787(1)2014 datad 08 September 2014, companies are allowed tha circulation of Audited
Financial Staterments aleng with Notice of Annual Review Meating to their certificate holders through
email. Certificate holders who wish to receive Modaraba's Annual Report via email in future are
requested to fill the consent form (available at First Paramount Modaraba website) and return it
to our Share Registrar at Plot Na-32-C, Jami Commercial Streat 2, DHA Phase VIl Karachi — 75500,
Telephona No: 021-111-000-322, Fax No: 021-35310191.

6. Unclaimed dividends

List of unclaimed dividend is available on Modaraba's websile. Cerlificate holders, who by any
reason, could not claim their dividends or collect their physical Modaraba certiflicate, are advised lo
contact our Share Registrar THK Associates (Private) Limited, to claim (or oblain enguires regarding)
their unclaimed dividend or pending Modaraba Cerlificales, If any. Please nole thal in compliance
with section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedures, all
dividends unclaimed for a period of three years, from the date due and payable, shall be deposited to
the credit of the Federal Government and in case of share/certificates, shall be delivered to the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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FORM OF PROXY

ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

Iwe

of CDC A/C No. Follo No. being a
Cerfificate Halder of First Paramount Modaraba, do hereby appolnt
Mr/Miss/Ms

CDC A/C No. Follo No: who Is / are also a Certificate Holder of the
Modaraba, as my / our proxy In my / our absence and to attend the Annual Review Meeting of the
Modaraba o be held on at PIMA House, 2nd Floor, Room No:

201, PECHS Community Centre, Block-2, PECHS, Shahrah-e-Quideen, Karachl and at any
adjournment thereof In the same manner as |/ we mysell [ ourselves would attend IT perscnally
present at such meeting.

As witness my/our hands In this day of

Afflx Revenue
Slgnature. Stamp of Re. 5
Address:
CNIC No.:

No. of Cerilficate{s) heid.

(Note: Signature should agree with the speclmen Signature registered with the Modaraba's
Share Reglstrar),

Note:

1. No Form of Proxy shall be valid unless duly signed along with revenue stamp and In case of
company should be executed under Its commeon seal under signed by Hs authorized person.

2 This Instrument appointing a proxy, duly completed, must be recelved at the registered
Office of the Modaraba at Sult No. 107-108, P.E.C H.S. Community Office Complex, Block 2,
P.E.CHS., Shahrah-e-Qualdeen, Karachl not later than 48 hours before the fime of holding the
Annual Review Meeting.

3. Attested coples of the CNIC or the Passport of beneficlal owners shall be furnished with the proxy
form.

4. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

5. Incase of corporaie entity, the Board's Resolution and Power of attorney with specimen signature
of the nominee shall be furnished along with proxy form to the company.
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